Public Document Pack

Meeting:
Date:
Time:

Venue:

Y 4, North
-‘k Northamptonshire

—— Council

Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel
Thursday 23rd September, 2021
9.30 am

Committee Room, Municipal Offices, Bowling Green Road, Kettering,
NN15 7QX

To members of the Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel

Councillors David Brackenbury (Chair), Valerie Anslow, Mark Dearing, Barbara Jenney,
David Jenney, Steven North and Kevin Thurland

Agenda
Iltem | Subject Presenting Page no.
Officer
01 Apologies for non-attendance
02 Members' Declarations of Interests
03 Minutes of the meeting held on 19 August 2021 3-6
Items for discussion
04 Creating a Vision for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc Simon 7-98
James
Items for information
05 Executive Forward Plan Democratic 99 - 104
Services
06 Close of Meeting

Adele Wylie, Monitoring Officer
North Northamptonshire Council

Proper Officer
15 September 2021

This agenda has been published by Democratic Services.
Committee Administrator: Louise Tyers - Democratic Services
@01832 742198

“Blouise.tyers@northnorthants.gov.uk

Page 1




Meetings at the Council Offices

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic seating in the meeting room may be limited. If you are
intending to attend the meeting as a spectator, please contact the committee administrator

Where there is a need for the Council to discuss exempt or confidential business, the press
and public will be excluded from those parts of the meeting only and will have to vacate the
room for the duration of that business.

Members’ Declarations of Interest

Members are reminded of their duty to ensure they abide by the approved Member Code
of Conduct whilst undertaking their role as a Councillor. Where a matter arises at a
meeting which relates to a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, you must declare the interest,
not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room
unless granted a dispensation.

Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to other Registerable Interests, you
must declare the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are
also allowed to speak at the meeting but must not take part in any vote on the matter
unless you have been granted a dispensation.

Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to your own financial interest (and is not
a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) or relates to a financial interest of a relative, friend or
close associate, you must disclose the interest and not vote on the matter unless granted
a dispensation. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also
allowed to speak at the meeting.

Members are reminded that they should continue to adhere to the Council’s approved
rules and protocols during the conduct of meetings. These are contained in the Council’s
approved Constitution.

If Members have any queries as to whether a Declaration of Interest should be made
please contact the Monitoring Officer at — monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk

Press & Media Enquiries

Any press or media enquiries should be directed through the Council’s Communications
Team to communications@northnorthants.gov.uk

Public Enquiries

Public enquiries regarding the Authority’s meetings can be made to
democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk

Page 2


mailto:monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:communications@northnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 3

gy £ North
.‘a Northamptonshire
= Council

Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel
At 9:30am on Thursday 19 August 2021
Held in the Council Chamber, Swanspool House, Doddington Road, Wellingborough

Present:

Councillors:

Steven North (Chair) Valerie Anslow
David Brackenbury Mark Dearing
Barbara Jenney David Jenney

In attendance:

Councillor Jason Smithers (Leader of the Council)
Councillor Jim Hakewill

Councillor Clive Hallam

Councillor Graham Lawman

16.

17.

18.

19.

Apologies for non-attendance

An apology for non-attendance was received from Councillor Kevin Thurland.
Members’ Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest from Members of the Panel.

Councillor Jim Hakewill had submitted a declaration in relation to agenda item
5, Adoption of the Kettering Site Specific Part 2 Local Plan, in that he had a
disclosable pecuniary interest as a landowner in Braybrooke and indicated that
he would leave the meeting room during any discussion on issues relating to
Braybrooke.

Minutes of the Meeting held on 19 July 2021

RESOLVED to accept the minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2021 as a
correct record.

Isham Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan

Sue Bateman, Senior Planning Officer, introduced the report which asked the
Panel to consider the Isham Conservation Area Character Appraisal and
Management Plan prior to its consideration by the Executive. Ms Bateman was
accompanied by Tim Murphy and Hector Martin from Place Services who had
compiled the Character Appraisal and Management Plan.

Page 3



20.

Consultation on the document had taken place between January and March
2021 and comments had been received from 21 respondents including
residents, the parish council, neighbourhood planning group and local ward
councillor. All responses had been considered and several amendments had
been suggested.

During discussion on the report, Members sought clarification that residents
who already had unsympathetic uPVC windows in place would not be forced to
replace them with timber. It was confirmed that any future replacement would
be like for like and timber was recommended, however timber to uPVC would
be more problematic. Mr Murphy explained that issues which had come through
the consultation had included parking and the inclusion of the Isham Mill
industrial structure. It was noted that whilst the parish council were in general
agreement with the proposals, they had raised a number of points that they did
not support and officers were requested to further assist the parish council with
their concerns before the report is considered by the Executive on 30
September.

RESOLVED to recommend to the Executive that:

(1) it adopts the Revised Isham Conservation Area Character Appraisal and
Management Plan.

(i) it revises the Isham Conservation Area Boundary.

Reasons for Recommendations — To accord with the Council’s duty to formulate
and publish proposals for the preservation and enhancement of conservation
areas and then to actively manage their protection and physical improvement.

Adoption of the Kettering Site Specific Part 2 Local Plan

Julia Baish, Development Team Leader, introduced the report which asked the
Panel to consider the Kettering Site Specific Part 2 Local Plan prior to its
consideration by the Executive and then Full Council.

Kettering Borough Council (KBC) had submitted the local plan to the Secretary
of State in May 2020, with a public examination being held in October 2020.
Further consultation had been undertaken between March and April 2021 on
the modifications proposed by KBC and accepted by the Inspector. The
outcome of the examination was that with the recommended main modifications
the Plan was sound. The Plan was now ready for formal adoption by the
Council, where it would supersede the 1995 Kettering Borough Local Plan.

During discussion on the report, members congratulated everyone who had
been involved in getting the Plan to this point. It was disappointing for all
members that a number of the local green spaces had been removed by the
Inspector, but it was hoped that this could be looked at in a wider context during
the review of the JCS. There were some lessons to be learnt around green
spaces as the Inspector was concerned that the spaces included in the Plan
had either not been put forward by local communities or there were no reasons
included as to why the space was important to them. Asked for clarification
about any substantial policy changes made by the Inspector, officers advised
that a small number of policies had been deleted including retirement/care

Page 4



21.

homes, which was already sufficiently covered in the JCS, and town centre
boundaries, which were covered in other policies. The McAlpine’s Yard housing
allocation had also been deleted due to unresolved flood risk issues; however
this did not have a significant impact on the Council’s housing numbers which
still met the JCS requirements and it was likely a planning application for the
site would come through in the future. With relation to Gypsy and Travellers
Sites, it was acknowledged that this was an issue for all North Northamptonshire
and progress was being made on developing a separate allocations document
on a North Northamptonshire basis.

RESOLVED to recommend to the Executive that:

(1) the Kettering Site Specific Part 2 Local Plan be recommended to Full
Council for adoption.

(i) delegated authority be given to the Executive Member for Growth and
Regeneration, in consultation with the Assistant Director for Growth and
Regeneration, to make any further Additional Modifications to the
Kettering Site Specific Part 2 Local Plan or its accompanying Policies
Map that relate exclusively to factual updates, grammatical corrections
and formatting for the purposes of publishing the Plan to presentation
standard.

(i)  delegated authority be given to the Executive Member for Growth and
Regeneration, in consultation with the Assistant Director for Growth and
Regeneration, to prepare and publish the Adoption Statement and the
Sustainability Appraisal Statement and fulfil any other duties required
under Regulation 26 and 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Local
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

Reasons for Recommendations

1) The NPPF states that the planning system should be genuinely plan-
led. Succinct and up-to-date plans should provide a positive vision
for the future of each area and a framework for addressing housing
needs and other economic, social and environmental priorities

2) The Plan drawn up by Kettering Borough Council was subject to
thorough examination and has been modified as a result of
recommendations made by the Inspector. The Council also made
non-substantive modifications to the Plan during the course of the
examination.

3) In the event that the Plan is adopted for the Kettering area of North
Northamptonshire, it will supersede all of the existing saved policies
and allocations in the 1995 Local Plan for Kettering Borough.

Draft Corporate Plan (parts relevant to the EAP)
Rob Harbour, Assistant Director for Growth and Regeneration, introduced the
report which presented the relevant sections of the draft Corporate Plan which

related to climate change, the environment and growth, for the Panel to consider
and provide advice and feedback to the Executive.

Page 5



22.

The Corporate Plan would be a high-level document, with more detailed
information about the actions to deliver the Plan contained within Service Plans
which would be developed once the Corporate Plan had been developed.

During discussion on the report, Members welcomed the priorities which had
been included for safe and thriving places and green, sustainable environment
but acknowledged that they needed to be paid for. The Executive are
encouraged to work together with external bodies to support delivery of the Plan
and to seek appropriate sources of funding as appropriate. Mr Harbour
acknowledged the importance of funding and advised that resources on how to
support this was being considered as part of the transformation work for the
Council. Other key points made by the Panel included:

e S106 Monies

There is a need for a review of S106 monies as it is important to ensure
that we receive the required contributions from developers.

e Town Centres

There is a need to consider what the long-term aspirations for our town
centres are, particularly with a reduced retail footprint. The words ‘our
key’ should be replaced with ‘all our’ as all towns were important and
there may be unintentional problems in the future if we started to prioritise
towns. However, it needed to be acknowledged that four of our towns
were growth towns and would need different support. Town centres need
to be supported as there is a move for them to become more residential
by converting buildings and building flats which does impact on smaller
towns, such as parking. The identities for our towns needs to be
enhanced and developed.

e Renewable Energy

New technologies such as hydrogen should also be included. The
installation of renewable energy technologies is not currently required for
new developments and developers should be encouraged to include.

Panel members were asked to email any further comments on the proposed
priorities to the Chair, copying in George Candler.

RESOLVED that the comments on the proposed priorities in the Corporate Plan
relevant to this Executive Advisory Panel be forwarded to the Executive for
consideration.

Close of Meeting

The meeting closed at 11:12am.

Chair

Date
Page 6



Agenda Item 4

gy £ North
.‘a Northamptonshire
= Council

PLANNING POLICY EXECUTIVE ADVISORY PANEL
23 September 2021

Report Title Creating a Vision for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc
Report Author Simon James, Planning Policy Manager
Simon.james@northnorthants.gov.uk

Contributors/Checkers/Approvers

North MO

North S151

Other Director/SME

List of Appendices

Appendix A — Creating a Vision for the Oxford—Cambridge Arc — July 2021

Appendix B — North Northamptonshire Council draft planning policy response
to the Creating a Vision for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc
consultation

1. Purpose of Report

1.1. Forthe Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel (PPEAP) to provide feedback
on the proposed planning policy draft response to the ‘Creating a Vision for the
Oxford-Cambridge Arc’ consultation, to inform North Northamptonshire
Council’s response.

2. Executive Summary

2.1 The Oxford-Cambridge Arc has been identified by the Government as a key
economic priority. In this consultation, the Government is seeking views on what
the vision for the future growth of the Arc should be to 2050, to be delivered
through the Arc Spatial Framework (ASF). The consultation document is
attached at Appendix A.

2.2  The ASF will form national planning policy and transport policy for the Arc area,
and local planning and local transport authorities must have regard to it when
preparing local transport and local development plans and policies. It will be
capable of being a material consideration in relevant planning decisions in the
area. The North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan (NNSP) will inform and be
influenced by the development of the ASF.

2.3 It is considered essential that North Northamptonshire Council is actively
involved in the development of the ASF at officer and Member levels to
maximise opportunities and benefits for North Northamptonshire. Key

Page 7


mailto:Simon.james@northnorthants.gov.uk

implications for North Northamptonshire are identified in this report and a draft
planning policy response to the consultation set out at Appendix B. Feedback
from this Panel is sought to inform the North Northamptonshire Council
response, which will be submitted with the agreement of the Executive Member
for Growth and Regeneration in consultation with the Executive Director for
Place and Economy.

Recommendations

3.1

3.2

It is recommended that the Planning Policy Executive Advisory Panel provide
feedback on the draft planning policy response in Appendix B, which will inform
the North Northamptonshire Council response, to be submitted with the
agreement of the Executive Member for Growth and Regeneration, in
consultation with the Executive Director for Place and Economy.

Reason for Recommendation:

To ensure that North Northamptonshire is actively involved in the development
of the ASF to maximise the opportunities and benefits for North
Northamptonshire and the communities within it and that key issues that affect
North Northamptonshire are addressed in the development of the ASF.

Report Background

4.1

4.2

The Government wants to support sustainable economic growth in the Oxford-
Cambridge Arc, so is developing the Arc Spatial Framework (ASF) to plan for
that growth to 2050 and beyond. The ASF will be a long-term strategic plan for
the area, developed by the Government, and informed by engagement with local
communities and stakeholders. Para 1.6 of the document sets out that it will
have sustainability at its core and guide planning decisions and investment
under four policy ‘pillars’:

° the environment;

J the economy

o connectivity and infrastructure; and

o place-making

The ASF will form national planning policy and transport policy for the Arc and
local planning and local transport authorities must have regard to it when
preparing local transport and local development plans and policies, and it will
be capable of being a material consideration in relevant planning decisions in
the area. The North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan (NNSP) will inform and be
influenced by the development of the ASF. The Arc area is set out in Figure
1.1 of the consultation document as below:

Page 8



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

West
Northamptonshire

D Ceremonial Counties

[:] County Council
P
T

3 Cambridgeshire and
=* Peterborough
Combined Authority

District Council

Unitary Authority

Figure 1.1 — The Oxford-Cambridge Arc

In February 2021, the Government published a policy paper that set out how it
intended to develop a Spatial Framework to help realise its ambition to support
sustainable economic growth in the Oxford-Cambridge Arc. The high-level
implications for North Northamptonshire were reported to the North
Northamptonshire Joint Planning Committee on 2" March 2021.

In this latest consultation, the Government is seeking views on what the vision
for the future growth of the Arc should be to 2050 to be delivered through the
Arc Spatial Framework (ASF). As it is developed the ASF will be accompanied
by a fully integrated Sustainability Appraisal (SA) which will be informed by other
statutory assessments and regimes such as the habitats regulations
assessment pursuant to the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations
2017. As part of the consultation, views are also sought on the initial work that
has been done to set the scope of the Sustainability Appraisal.

The consultation runs from 20" July 2021 to 12" October 2021 and is the first
of three planned consultations on the ASF. Para 1.10 of the document sets out
that the Government is particularly keen to hear from people who normally do
not engage in planning consultations and decisions. This is part of its
commitment to developing the ASF in a way that is open, collaborative,
inclusive, digital and evidence-based. The engagement undertaken to date and
how it has influenced the approach is explained at paras 1.15-1.22 of the
consultation document.

The Government will consider all comments received to this consultation, which,
alongside other considerations, will help create the Spatial Framework’s vision
for the Arc to 2050 and inform the development of the Sustainability Appraisal.
In spring 2022, Government expects to publish the vision as well as a public
consultation on options for the policies in the ASF. This will form part of two
further public consultations that will support the development of the ASF.

Page 9


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/962455/Spatial_framework_policy_paper.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1003974/Creating_a_vision_for_the_Oxford-Cambridge_Arc.pdf

« Towards a Spatial Framework — using the vision as a foundation, we will
develop options for delivering its objectives. The options will be based on
feedback from engagement, initial evidence gathering and analysis. We hope to
publish this, including a Sustainable Appraisal ‘Issues and Options’ Report, for
public consultation in spring 2022 to give everyone a chance to have their say;
and

« Draft Spatial Framework - to finalise the Spatial Framework, we will consider
responses to the previous consultation, and undertake further spatial analysis,
option testing, impact assessments and engagement. \We hope to publish the
draft Spatial Framework with its Sustainability Appraisal Environmental Report,
for consultation in autumn 2022, with implementation of the final framework
shortly after.

Issues and Choices

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Previous reports (15" March 2018 (Item 4), 25" April 2019 (Item 4), 25" July
2019 (Item 6)) updated the North Northamptonshire Joint Planning Committee
on the background and current position regarding the preparation of the ASF
and the implications for North Northamptonshire, most recently on 2" March
2021 (Item 7). This is discussed in more detail later in section 5.

Para 1.19 of the consultation document explains the measures Government
have taken to communicate best with a wider audience. It sets out that
Government has kept the language and content as simple and short as possible.
The aim is to reach as wide and diverse an audience as possible through this
consultation, in particular those people who do not normally engage in planning.
A digital consultation hub has been provided for people to view information and
provide feedback.

As set out above, the style and content of the questions are tailored to seek
wider engagement. The document sets out a number of consultation questions
on different themes to obtain feedback. This includes seeking views on the
importance of issues and asking for further details on key issues. Given that the
response to the multiple-choice questions would be very important/important to
all, a response to these questions has not been proposed, but they are included
in Appendix B for completeness. MHCLG have advised officers that they would
prefer those responding to use the web-based platform (which has a 500
character limit) if possible because this is the most straightforward way for them
to process and analyse responses. Where this isn't possible — more likely where
organisations such as North Northamptonshire Council are responding — then
submitting a response by email remains an option, but MHCLG would
encourage sign-posting to the relevant section of the consultation pro forma.
Due to the character limit, it is considered that to provide the necessary detail
in the Councils response a response should be prepared to be submitted by
email which clearly sign-posts to the relevant questions.

This section provides a high-level overview of the key elements of the document
and summary of headlines of the draft proposed planning policy response which
is set out in more detail in Appendix B. The implications for North

Page 10


https://www.kettering.gov.uk/meetings/meeting/1890/north_northamptonshire_joint_planning_committee
https://www.kettering.gov.uk/meetings/meeting/1890/north_northamptonshire_joint_planning_committee

5.5

5.6

Northamptonshire are considered to be largely as reported to the 2"4 March
2021 Joint Planning Committee. These implications are reflected in the
proposed response at Appendix B. This response has been informed by
relevant consultation responses from the Joint Planning Committee and former
North Northamptonshire authorities, notably to the Planning for the Future White
Paper, including the response of the North Northamptonshire Shadow
Executive to this consultation.

This draft response will be used to gain feedback from Members of this
Executive Advisory Panel and other areas within the Council. As the
consultation runs until 12" October, the final North Northamptonshire Council
response will be developed based on Member input, feedback from other
Service Areas and Directorates within the Council, key stakeholder responses
and discussions at relevant officer and Member groups, before it is submitted
with the agreement of the Executive Member for Growth and Regeneration, in
consultation with the Executive Director for Growth and Regeneration.

It is considered essential that North Northamptonshire Council is actively
involved in the development of the ASF at officer and Member levels, to
maximise opportunities and benefits for North Northamptonshire and ensure
that key issues that affect North Northamptonshire are addressed in the
development of the ASF. The proposed response recognises the opportunities
provided by the Arc and ASF but sets out the conditions required to achieve
maximum benefits for North Northamptonshire.

Consultation Paper and implications for North Northamptonshire

Section 1. Introduction: Creating a Vision for the Oxford Cambridge Arc (paras 1.1-

1.26)

5.7

This section explains the background to the ASF and the purpose of the
consultation as explained in the sections above.

Headlines of proposed response

The vision for the Arc should be that all areas and the communities within it,
benefit from being within it, with no area left behind.

North Northamptonshire Council (NNC) recognises the opportunities provided
by the Arc. Support from the government will be necessary to realise and
deliver these ambitions.

Given the lack of spatial detail in the current consultation, including on
elements such as housing and employment growth, the specific implications
or expectations for North Northamptonshire are unclear.

Investment in key infrastructure, including an enhanced environment, will be
critical to realising North Northamptonshire’s contribution to the Arc by
unlocking key sites for development and facilitating conditions for growth.

Section 2. The Environment (paras 2.1-2.13)

5.8

This section sets out how the Government considers that the ASF offers a
unique opportunity to preserve and enhance a green Arc and support nature
recovery, improve air quality, reduce flood risk and improve access to nature
and green space across the area (para 2.5). This will be achieved by developing
policy to take a more coordinated approach to the environment by means of

Page 11



making sure the environment is at the centre of planning decisions and ensuring
natural capital forms a key part of planning and decision making. Policy should
be set to support, amongst other things, the retention of and investment in, key
existing and potential new habitats as well as set high standards for new
development including on carbon emissions and active travel. Para 2.6 goes on
to state that Environmental Opportunity Areas will be identified in the Arc where
the most benefits for environmental sustainability can be realised. Rockingham
Forest into John Clare Country, Nene Valley and Sywell Wood are identified as
strategic-scale environmental opportunity zones.

Headlines of proposed response:

The environment must be central to all activity within the Arc. The ASF
represents a real opportunity to ensure this by taking a coordinated approach.
There are considerable opportunities to engage with the desire to double
nature and increase biodiversity gain through projects including within the
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area (SPA) and the
Rockingham Forest.

North Northamptonshire Council will be particularly interested in the
development of the Habitats Regulation’s Assessment (HRA), as the Upper
Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA could potentially have a significant impact on
development in the area. The HRA for the ASF is also likely to influence the
HRAs of local plans. The impact on SPAs needs to be strategically
addressed. It is considered that the document could be more specific as to the
Arc’s Net Zero ambitions as it seems the key reference at para 4.5 seems
non-committal.

Section 3. The Economy (paras 3.1-3.10)

5.9

This section sets out how the Arc will develop an Economic Strategy, supported
by strong economic evidence, to identify the policies, locations and investment
needed to deliver the Arc’s potential for sustainable and green economic growth.
Policies will be set to make sure growth is felt by all communities and that will
help local planning authorities plan for new business and employment space to
meet the needs of different sectors and businesses (para 3.4).

Headlines of proposed response:

Given the continued growth aspirations of North Northamptonshire, it is
imperative the Arc Vision recognises the local deficit in Higher Education
provision and prioritises rectifying this in order to help the area level up and
increase social mobility for its residents, to the benefit of the wider Arc area.
If the Arc is to achieve its full potential, areas on its geographic periphery,
such as North Northamptonshire, must be prioritised for investment including
Education (see previous answer) and interventions to support economic
growth.

Section 4. Connectivity and Infrastructure (paras 4.1-4.10)

5.10

This section, through para 4.5, sets out how the Arc is committed to identifying
the long term need for new infrastructure and investment across the Arc to 2050
and using this work to create an infrastructure plan to support future growth and
place-making such as: delivering sustainable and public transport, protecting
and enhancing the environment and giving communities access to the public
services they need. Para 4.5 continues by setting out how the Arc has also

Page 12



committed to setting strategic policies for local transport authorities and local
planning authorities, building on the England’s Economic Heartland transport
strategy and evidence base, including the four key principles for transport
connectivity in the area:
e aiming for net zero carbon emissions from transport by 2040, but no
later than 2050
e improving quality of life and wellbeing through a safe and inclusive
transport system for all
e connecting people and businesses to markets and opportunities
¢ making sure people and goods can move efficiently through the area
and to/from international gateways.

Headlines of proposed response:

Development needs to be accompanied by all of the necessary infrastructure
to support it, and it must be of high quality, sustainable design, meeting local
needs and supporting the local economy, alongside maximising environmental
net gain and mitigation to climate change.

North Northamptonshire is already making an important contribution to
achieving wider growth objectives associated with its strategic location within a
nationally important growth area. Connectivity and investment in infrastructure
are key to delivery of sustainable growth.

Changing working habits such as increased remote working are likely to lead
to reduced demand for journeys to work, particularly as result of homeworking
becoming the norm for many people during the Covid-19 pandemic. The
impacts of this will need to be considered in the development of the ASF.
North Northamptonshire has previously raised concerns through the North
Northamptonshire Joint Planning Committee in respect of both the Arc and to
England's Economic Heartland that as the area is on the geographic periphery
of the Arc/ England’s Economic Heartland (EEH) area it was at risk of being
marginalised in terms of its role within it. We welcome the work being
undertaken by EEH in relation to this, including the development of
connectivity studies and welcome recognition in para 4.5 that the ASF will set
strategic policies which build on the EEH transport strategy.

Section 5. Place-making (paras 5.1-5.13)

5.11

5.12

The document states at para 5.6 that the Government wants to support Local
and Neighbourhood Plans in planning for a better future for their areas by
identifying the most sustainable locations for new homes, the infrastructure
needed to support sustainable growth in these locations (e.g. education and
health facilities) and locations to protect and improve the environment. The
document also sets out in para 5.7 that the Government will also seek to set
policies to enable new development to come forward at the scale and speed
needed as well as new development to support the recovery of nature and new
green space that can be accessed by all. Policies will also need to be set to
enable new development to support resilience to climate change and the
protection of highly valued existing green space. In addition to this, new policies
will be set to ensure housing needs are met in full, including ‘much needed’
affordable housing.

Para 5.8 of the document sets out that in parallel to the development of the
Spatial Framework, the Government is also exploring options to speed up new

Page 13



housing and infrastructure development in the Arc to help meet its ambitions,
where evidence supports it. This includes examining (and where appropriate,
developing) the case for new and/or expanded settlements in the Arc, including
options informed by possible East West Rail stations between Bedford and
Cambridge and growth options at Cambridge itself. The Government will
undertake additional Arc consultations on any specific proposals for such
options as appropriate. The Spatial Framework will guide the future growth of
the Arc to 2050, including on the question of new housing and infrastructure and
will, as part of its development, take into consideration any significant new
housing and infrastructure coming forward to meet the Arc's ambition.

Headlines of proposed response:

Growth should be located at the most sustainable locations and facilitate the
conditions for settlements to be more sustainable. Environmental constraints
and opportunities must be fully considered in determining the locations of
growth.

Residents share similar concerns to the Council regarding the need for high-
guality development that meets local needs and is supported by the necessary
infrastructure investment.

While house prices in North Northamptonshire are relatively affordable in a
wider context, median household incomes are also relatively low and have not
kept pace with house price inflation. Alongside access to bespoke affordable
housing products, opportunities for higher paid employment (as sought by the
JCS focus on higher skilled jobs) will be the most effective ways of improving
the affordability of market housing for the existing community.

It is welcomed that the document recognises that the essential ingredients of
successful placemaking, and that design quality is not simply about housing
delivery. Great places go beyond aesthetics and visual appearance,
encompassing other important principles such as social
opportunity/integration, community, health/wellbeing, and local economy.
Significant resources will be required (in both public and private sectors) to
implement these measures through local design policy. Additional resources
will be needed given capacity issues and the pressure already on the design
service in North Northamptonshire.

Section 6. Our commitment to engaging communities (paras 6.1-6.7)

5.13

This section states at para 6.2 that Government aims to conduct wide and
meaningful engagement throughout the process of the development of the ASF,
to give as many people as possible opportunity to influence it. Para 6.3 goes on
to say that the ASF wants to deliver an exemplary programme of engagement
throughout the two-year preparation process and Government will do this in a
way that is collaborative, adaptable, integrated and inclusive and will be
conducted via a digital first approach to support better, more accessible policy
engagement.

Headlines of proposed response:

There is no one size fits all for properly engaging with all parts of the
community on all aspects of planning.

The commitments in the document regarding consultation and engagement
are supported, as are the measures to ensure sustainability is at the heart of
the ASF. It is critical that these matters underpin the preparation of the ASF.

Page 14



The timetable for the ASF is challenging and will require significant input from
North Northamptonshire Council and other stakeholders (including an
anticipated three consultations in 18 months). It is important that this time
pressure does not undermine engagement and robust testing of the ASF and
the evidence base that underpins it. It is noted that the current timetable does
not include for an independent examination of the proposals or an end date for
the ASF to be finalised as national policy.

Section 7. Our commitment to data, evidence and digital tools (paras 7.1-7.7)

5.14

In this section the document states in para 7.6 that the Government is committed
to developing a reliable and complete evidence base and use the latest digital
technology and data analytics to develop it. Para 7.6 also sets out that the work
will support development of an open source, digital platform for data and
evidence to support collaboration between Government, businesses, local
councils and communities in decision making. The ASF will be visual, interactive
and map-based for effective public engagement.

Headlines of proposed response:

The commitment to developing a robust, accessible evidence base is strongly
supported and should assist implementation of the ASF and support local plan
development.

It is critical that the ASF evidence base addresses and seeks to resolve key
issues that could constrain sustainable growth within the Arc such as the
impact of Special Protection Areas (SPAS), infrastructure constraints, etc. This
will help support Local Plan development and implementation.

The use of digital tools is welcomed and will help to ensure that key data and
information can be shared to a wider audience and encourage active
participation.

Section 8. How we will monitor and deliver the framework (paras 8.6-8.11)

5.15

The document sets out in para 8.2 that a Spatial Framework delivery plan, an
infrastructure delivery plan as well other strategies and action plans across the
Spatial Framework’s thematic pillars will be created to deliver the identified
investment set out in the ASF. Para 8.10 goes on to state that setting up a robust
monitoring and evaluation framework is important for assessing the
effectiveness of the ASF and its policies. This will be crucial to keeping the ASF
under review and identify areas where objectives aren’t being met.

Headlines of proposed response:

The approach to assessing viability and identifying key infrastructure within the
development of the ASF at para 8.5 is supported as the approach and policies
in the ASF need to be deliverable.

Alongside the provision of sufficient infrastructure funding, local authorities will
require sufficient resources to implement the ASF locally.

It is unclear who will undertake the monitoring and provide the data. If local
authorities are to have a role they will need to be appropriately resourced.
Clear definitions of indicators and methodologies will be needed to ensure
consistency.

Page 15



Implications (including financial implications)

6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.3

6.3.1

6.4

6.4.1

6.5

6.5.1

6.6

6.6.1

Resources and Financial

There are no specific resources or financial implications arising from the
proposals at this stage. Officer resources will be required to formulate the
consultation response and maintain ongoing involvement in the development of
the ASF. There may be opportunities through the development of the ASF to
secure additional investment in North Northamptonshire.

Legal

The ASF will form national planning policy and transport policy for the Arc area,
and local planning and local transport authorities must have regard to it when
preparing local transport and local development plans and policies. It will be
capable of being a material consideration in relevant planning decisions in the
area.

Risk

There are no significant risks arising from the proposed recommendations in
this report. There is, however, a risk that if North Northamptonshire Council did
not respond to the consultation that relevant key issues that affect North
Northamptonshire and concerns of the Council may not be addressed in the
development of the ASF.

Consultation

The ASF document is out for consultation as explained in the report. The
engagement undertaken in developing the approach is set out in the
consultation document.

Consideration by Scrutiny

This draft response will be used to gain feedback from Members of this
Executive Advisory Panel and other areas within the Council. As the
consultation runs until 12th October, the final North Northamptonshire Council
response will be developed based on Member input, feedback from other
Service Areas and Directorates within the Council, key stakeholder responses
and discussions at relevant officer and Member groups, before it is submitted
with the agreement of the Executive Member for Growth and Regeneration, in
consultation with the Executive Director for Growth and Regeneration. There is
considered to be no need for wider consideration by scrutiny.

Climate Impact

The ASF document sets out the proposed approach to climate change
mitigation that will be taken in the ASF and its development. It is accompanied
by a Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report that considers climate change and
sets out opportunities for the Spatial Framework to address issues. The
proposed response identifies how the approach could potentially be
strengthened.

Page 16



6.7

6.7.1

Community Impact

The ASF document seeks to ensure that existing and new communities see real
benefits from living in the Arc and feedback is sought to influence the Vision and
approach. The proposed consultation response seeks to ensure that the
benefits for North Northamptonshire and its communities are maximised.

7. Background Papers

7.1 Planning for sustainable growth in the Oxford-Cambridge Arc: An introduction
to the Oxford-Cambridge Arc Spatial Framework, HM Government, February
2021

7.2  North Northamptonshire Joint Planning Committee Report of 2 March 2021
regarding the Policy Paper on the Spatial Framework (Report Item 7,
paragraphs 3.6-3.27)

7.3  North Northamptonshire Joint Planning Committee Report of 25 July 2019
regarding the North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Review (Report Item
6, paragraphs 3.6-3.13)

7.4  North Northamptonshire Joint Planning Committee Report of 25 April 2019
regarding Oxford-Cambridge Arc Update (Report Item 4)

7.5 North Northamptonshire Joint Planning Committee Report of 15 March 2018
regarding Cambridge-Milton Keynes-Oxford Corridor (Report Item 4)

7.6  North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strateqy 2011-2031, adopted July 2016

7.7 North Northamptonshire Joint Planning Committee responses to relevant

consultations can be viewed at: http://www.nnjpdu.org.uk/consultations/

Page 17


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/962455/Spatial_framework_policy_paper.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/962455/Spatial_framework_policy_paper.pdf
https://www.kettering.gov.uk/meetings/meeting/1890/north_northamptonshire_joint_planning_committee
https://www.kettering.gov.uk/meetings/meeting/1890/north_northamptonshire_joint_planning_committee
https://www.kettering.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/14364/6_north_northamptonshire_joint_core_strategy_review
https://www.kettering.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/14364/6_north_northamptonshire_joint_core_strategy_review
https://www.kettering.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/14192/item_4_-_oxford-cambridge_arc_update
https://www.kettering.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/14192/item_4_-_oxford-cambridge_arc_update
https://cmis.northamptonshire.gov.uk/cmis5live/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=zMIcH8yGY29cGpRXBQylkM7lG1oMMGsgJH2B4NW9N6pG9LXu%2fnjKuw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
https://cmis.northamptonshire.gov.uk/cmis5live/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=zMIcH8yGY29cGpRXBQylkM7lG1oMMGsgJH2B4NW9N6pG9LXu%2fnjKuw%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
http://www.nnjpdu.org.uk/publications/adopted-north-northamptonshire-joint-core-strategy-2011-2031/
http://www.nnjpdu.org.uk/consultations/

This page is intentionally left blank



Ancerdix A
HM Government

e

////II\\

= CAMBRIDGE
ZJJI\  ARC

Creating a vision for the
Oxford-Cambridge Arc

Consultation

July 2021



OGL

© Crown copyright 2021

This publication is licensed under the terms of the Open Government Licence v3.0 except
where otherwise stated. To view this licence, visit nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-
Government-licence/version/3

Digital boundary products and reference maps included in this publication contain OS data ©
Crown copyright and database right 2021, and Office for National Statistics data licensed under
the Open Government Licence v.3.0.

Where we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to obtain
permission from the copyright holders concerned.

This publication is available at: www.gov.uk/official-documents

If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, complete the form at
http://forms.communities.gov.uk/ or write to us at:

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
Fry Building

2 Marsham Street

London

SWI1P 4DF

Telephone: 030 3444 0000 Page 20


http://nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/
http://nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/
http://www.gov.uk/official-documents
http://forms.communities.gov.uk/

Contents

Contents

Scope of this consultation

1. Introduction: Creating a Vision for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc 1
The government’s ambition for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc 1
The government is developing a Spatial Framework to help deliver on that ambition 2
What is the Spatial Framework, and what could it do? 2
Why we are consulting you now 4
What you have told us so far 5
Next steps 7
What do you think? 8

2. The Environment 10
Our ambition for the Arc’s environment 10
The Arc’s environment today 10
How the Spatial Framework could help us to realise our ambition 11
What you have told us so far 14
What do you think? 15

3. The Economy 17
Our ambition for the Arc’s economy 17
The Arc’s economy today 17
How the Spatial Framework could help us to deliver our ambition 22
What you have told us so far 22
What do you think? 24

4. Connectivity and Infrastructure 25
Our ambition for connectivity and infrastructure in the Arc 25
Connectivity and infrastructure in the Arc today 25
How the Spatial Framework could help to deliver our ambition 28
What you have told us so far 30
What do you think? 31

5. Place-making 34
Our ambition for place-making in the Arc 34
Place-making in the Arc today 34

Page 21



Contents

How the Spatial Framework could help us to deliver our ambition
What have you told us so far
What do you think?

Our commitment to engaging communities
Why do we want to engage?

Our commitment to you

What have we done so far?

How will our engagement be structured?

Engagement roadmap

Have your say

What do you think?

Our commitment to data, evidence and digital tools
Introduction

Our commitment

Evidence base

What do you think?

How we will monitor and deliver the Framework
Delivery and funding

Introduction

Our approach to delivery and funding

What do you think?
Monitoring and evaluation

Introduction

Our commitment to monitoring and evaluation

What do you think?

Page 22

35
36
37

39
39
39
40
41
42
43
43

44
44
44
46
46

47
47
47
47
48
48
48
49
50



Scope of this consultation

Scope of this consultation

Geographical scope:

This consultation relates to the Oxford-Cambridge Arc. This is shown
in Figure 1.1 and defined as the area that covers the ceremonial
counties of Oxfordshire, Buckinghamshire, Bedfordshire,
Northamptonshire and Cambridgeshire.

Topic of this
consultation:

This consultation is being undertaken to inform our approach to the
future of the Oxford-Cambridge Arc, which has been identified by the
government as a key economic priority. We are seeking views to help
us create a vision for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc Spatial Framework,
and in doing so guide the future growth of the area to 2050. This is in
line with the commitment we made at the launch of the Spatial
Framework process? in February 2021. The Spatial Framework will
form national planning policy and transport policy for the Arc and
local planning and local transport authorities must have regard to it
when preparing local transport and local development plans and
policies?, and it will be capable of being a material consideration in
relevant planning decisions in the area.

Scope of this
consultation:

In February 2021, the government published a policy paper?! that set
out how we intend to develop a Spatial Framework to help us realise
our ambition to support sustainable economic growth in the Oxford-
Cambridge Arc.

In this consultation, we are seeking views on what the vision for the
future growth of the Arc should be to 2050 to be delivered through
the Spatial Framework.

We are undertaking a fully integrated Sustainability Appraisal (SA),
incorporating a strategic environmental assessment for the purposes
of the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes
Regulations 2004 (commonly referred to as the Strategic
Environmental Assessment Regulations 2004 or “SEA Regulations”).
The Sustainability Appraisal will also be informed by other statutory
assessments and regimes such as a habitats regulations
assessment pursuant to the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017. As part of this consultation, we are seeking views
on the initial work we have done to set the scope of the Sustainability
Appraisal. Questions related to the scope of the Sustainability
Appraisal can be found in Chapter 8 of the Scoping Report published
as part of this consultation.

1 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, Planning for sustainable growth in the Oxford-
Cambridge Arc: An introduction to the Oxford-Cambridge Arc Spatial Framework, February 2021. Available at:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/Government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/962455/Spatial

framework policy paper.pdf

2 See s.112 Transport Act 2000 and s.19(2) Planninq:agfg‘éngsory Purchase Act 2004.


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/planning-for-sustainable-growth-in-the-oxford-cambridge-arc-spatial-framework/planning-for-sustainable-growth-in-the-oxford-cambridge-arc-an-introduction-to-the-spatial-framework
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/creating-a-vision-for-the-oxford-cambridge-arc
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/962455/Spatial_framework_policy_paper.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/962455/Spatial_framework_policy_paper.pdf

Scope of this consultation

We are interested in hearing from those who live, work and have an
interest in the future of the area — particularly from those who have
not responded to a consultation of this kind before.

We recognise that we have provided a limited range of options for
responses to questions — this is so that the consultation is accessible
and easy to respond to, and so that we can more easily collect and
analyse the views of everyone who responds at this early stage.
However, we are open to other ideas on the vision and will consider
all relevant views expressed.

There will be further opportunities to have your say. This is the first of
three planned consultations on the Spatial Framework for the Arc.

For information, where relevant, responses to this consultation may
be considered as part of the development of other government led
initiatives and proposals in the Arc to help realise economic growth
ambitions. It is also highly likely that in parallel to the Spatial
Framework consultations, the government will hold other
consultations on such further proposals, which may support the
development and delivery of the vision for the Spatial Framework.

Impact assessment:

The government is mindful of the Public Sector Equality Duty and its
responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010. This includes the need
to consider all individuals when carrying out their day-to-day work
such as shaping policy and delivering services, and the duty to have
regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunity and foster good relations between different people as set
out in the Equality Act 2010. This duty and other responsibilities will
be kept under consideration as the Spatial Framework develops to
ensure we consider the impact of its proposals and policies on all
individuals including those with protected characteristics. We are
seeking, through this consultation, the views of all people, including
groups with protected characteristics. We have designed this
consultation process to be inclusive and accessible to different
people and groups.

Basic information

To: This consultation is open to everyone. We are keen to hear from the
public and interested parties from across the public and private
sector.

Body/bodies Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government

responsible for the
consultation:

Duration:

This consultation will last for 12 weeks from 20 July 2021 to 12
October 2021.

Page 24



Scope of this consultation

Enquiries:

For any enquiries about this consultation, please visit our online
platform or our guidance webpage for more information.

How to respond:

You can respond by using our online platform, which we strongly
encourage you use. Using the online platform greatly assists our
analysis of the responses, enabling more efficient and effective
consideration of issues raised. If you are responding in writing,
please make it clear which question or questions you are responding
to. Written responses should be sent to:

Oxford-Cambridge Arc Unit
Fry Building,

2 Marsham Street,

London,

SW1P 4DF

Page 25


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/oxford-cambridge-arc/oxford-cambridge-arc
http://futureofthearc.placebuilder.io/

1. Introduction

1. Introduction: Creating a Vision
for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc

The government’s ambition for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc

1.1 The Oxford-Cambridge Arc is a national economic priority areas. We believe it has
the potential to be one of the most prosperous, innovative and sustainable economic
areas in the world, and can make a major contribution to national economic recovery as
we seek to build back better from the impact of COVID-19.

I:l Ceremonial Counties

D County Council
E ) E Cambridgeshire and
=" Peterborough
Combined Authority

District Council

Unitary Authority

Figure 1.1 — The Oxford-Cambridge Arc

3 See the policy paper on the Oxford-Cambridge Arc, published from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and
Local Government in February 2021, available at: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/oxford-cambridge-
arc/oxford-cambridge-arc Page 26

1


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/oxford-cambridge-arc/oxford-cambridge-arc
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/oxford-cambridge-arc/oxford-cambridge-arc

1. Introduction

The government is developing a Spatial Framework to help
deliver on that ambition

1.2

1.3

1.4

The government wants to support sustainable economic growth in the Oxford-
Cambridge Arc, so we are developing a Spatial Framework to plan for that growth —
to 2050 and beyond?3. The Spatial Framework will set national planning policy and
national transport policy for the area set out in Figure 1.1, which covers the ceremonial
counties of Oxfordshire, Buckinghamshire, Bedfordshire, Northamptonshire and
Cambridgeshire. At a strategic scale, this will coordinate and focus investment in the area
and shape future local planning decisions on:

how land is used;

how the environment is protected and enhanced;

where and what type of new development happens; and

what infrastructure is provided.

We are developing a long-term Spatial Framework for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc so
that we can plan for growth in a more sustainable and strategic way. We believe that
the Spatial Framework will allow us to plan for growth in a way that:

¢ makes the area a better place to live and work for all;

e leaves a long-term legacy by protecting and enhancing the Arc’s built and natural
environment and beautiful places; and

¢ helps combat and build resilience to climate change.

The government will lead the development of the Spatial Framework, and we will
work closely with communities and local stakeholders at each step. We want to hear
anyone interested in the local area, including people and organisations in all parts of the
Arc as we start to set priorities and gather evidence. This will help identify how we can
best meet our ambition for the area. This consultation is the first of three that we will
undertake as we develop the Spatial Framework over the next two years.

What is the Spatial Framework, and what could it do?

15

1.6

We think a joined-up, long-term approach to planning for growth is the best way to
realise our ambitions for economy and sustainability in the Oxford-Cambridge Arc.

The Spatial Framework will be a long-term strategic plan for the area, developed by
the government, and informed by engagement with local communities and

Page 27




1. Introduction

1.7

1.8

stakeholders. It will have sustainability at its core and guide planning decisions and
investment under four policy ‘pillars’:

¢ the environment;
e the economy;
e connectivity and infrastructure; and

e place-making.

The Spatial Framework will provide a national planning policy framework for the
area of the Arc. This will help to better coordinate and provide a strategic direction for:

e Development Plans including Local Plans, produced by local planning
authorities —such as district councils. Local Plans set the policies that guide
the development and use of land in its area. For example, Local Plans designate
land uses, and set an overall strategy to deliver enough housing (including
affordable housing), infrastructure, community facilities (such as schools and
health centres) and to protect, enhance and recover the natural, built and historic
environment. There are 18 local planning authorities in the Arc (including new
authorities that have replaced joint planning areas in Northamptonshire);

e Local Transport Plans, which are produced by strategic authorities such as
county councils. These plans set out objectives for transport and identify
priority projects and funding requirements for them. In the Arc, there are eight
transport planning authorities; and

e Local Enterprise Partnerships, who have developed Local Industrial Strategies
to identify local economic strengths, challenges and opportunities, the action
needed to boost productivity, earning powers and competitiveness in the area for
example by identifying investment opportunities to unlock economic potential.

We believe that this approach will allow us to better plan for economic growth
supported by new homes and infrastructure and more sustainable results. The
Spatial Framework will form national planning and transport policy for the Arc, and
inform Development Plans including Local Plans and Neighbourhood Plans; Local
Transport Plans; and Local Industrial Strategies within the area and local decision-
making. Local planning authorities must have regard to such national policies when
preparing local plans, and take them into account, where relevant, when making
decisions on planning applications. Decisions on planning applications need, as a matter
of law, to be made in accordance with such local plans unless material considerations
(including national policy) indicate otherwise. National transport policy (and/ or guidance)
is intended to guide the content of local transport plans in the Arc, as local transport

Page 28



1. Introduction

authorities must have regard to it and/ or take it into account under current legal
framework.

g National Plannin

) 8 9 Spatial Framework

% Policy Framework

4

Local Plan s

o
pre)

— (=

; :

s g
o
>
[«*]
a

Neighbourhood Plans

Figure 1.2 — Status of the OxCam Arc Spatial Framework within the planning system

1.9 We will also make sure that sustainability is at the heart of the Spatial Framework
by undertaking a fully integrated Sustainability Appraisal. This will be a rigorous
process that will ensure full consideration is given to environmental, economic and social
sustainability in the policy development and decision-making process, and across each of
the four ‘pillars’ of our approach.

Why we are consulting you now

1.10 We believe that for the Spatial Framework to work best as a national planning
policy for the Arc, it should be shaped by those who live, work and have an interest
in the area. We want you to help us create a vision for the area to 2050 and help set the
scope of the Sustainability Appraisal. Whether you live, work, learn, invest, visit or just
have an interest in the Arc, all views matter to us. We are particularly keen to hear from
those people who normally do not engage in planning consultations and decisions. This is
part of our commitment* to developing the Spatial Framework in a way that is open,
collaborative, inclusive, digital, and evidence-based.

4 You can find more information on our commitment here: https://www.gov.uk/Government/publications/planning-
for-sustainable-growth-in-the-oxford-cambridge-arc-spatial-framework/planning-for-sustainable-growth-in-the-
oxford—cambridqe—arc-an-introduction-to-the-spatial{D@g@o_@avhat-the-spatial-framework-wiII-do

1 ~J



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/planning-for-sustainable-growth-in-the-oxford-cambridge-arc-spatial-framework/planning-for-sustainable-growth-in-the-oxford-cambridge-arc-an-introduction-to-the-spatial-framework#what-the-spatial-framework-will-do
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/planning-for-sustainable-growth-in-the-oxford-cambridge-arc-spatial-framework/planning-for-sustainable-growth-in-the-oxford-cambridge-arc-an-introduction-to-the-spatial-framework#what-the-spatial-framework-will-do
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/planning-for-sustainable-growth-in-the-oxford-cambridge-arc-spatial-framework/planning-for-sustainable-growth-in-the-oxford-cambridge-arc-an-introduction-to-the-spatial-framework#what-the-spatial-framework-will-do

1. Introduction

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

The purpose of the Spatial Framework is to support the delivery of government’s
ambitions for the OxCam Arc in the most sustainable way®. The aim of this
consultation is to seek your views on the Spatial Framework’s vision for the Arc and the
scope of the Sustainability Appraisal, and set the direction of travel for future policies and
growth.

Creating a vision is an important first step in the preparation of the Spatial
Framework and development of its policies. The vision will form the core of the Spatial
Framework. Its aim is to clearly and simply bring to life and illustrate the kind of place that
the OxCam Arc will be in the future, as a result of the policies working together.

We think the vision for the Spatial Framework should be ambitious and
aspirational, unique to the Arc and reflect its people and places. We think it is
important to also look at potential opportunities for transformation. The world will be a
very different place by 2050, and we want to ensure that the vision helps make the area
an even better place to live, work, travel in and enjoy for existing and future communities
alike. The vision will need to be realistic too, reflecting the strategic planning role and
remit of the Spatial Framework. And above all, we want to create a shared vision, one
that has been developed through working with as wide and representative audience as
possible.

There are lots of ways you can develop a vision. You can ask people to picture the kind
of place it will be in the future. Some like to think about it in the current context, by
considering what currently works well and what could be improved. Others like to
approach it by thinking about what the vision will do and seek to achieve. Asking people
what their priorities are for the future can cut across all three of these methods. We tested
these approaches with different audiences earlier this year and through their feedback
concluded that the best way to engage our diverse audience was to use a mix of all of
these approaches. The design of this consultation, including our questions, reflects this.

What you have told us so far

1.15

1.16

1.17

We want to take an open, collaborative and inclusive approach to developing the Spatial
Framework.

When we launched the Spatial Framework in February 2021, we committed to carrying
out some initial engagement with people in the Arc so that we could get the most out of
this consultation — by starting to understand key priorities, helping to identify what
guestions we could ask in this consultation, and testing how we could engage with
different people across the area.

Then, in March 2021, we held a short series of initial workshops and conversations with a
small sample of local residents, young people, academic experts, businesses, charities,
campaign groups and local councils that allowed us to test our approach to engagement
in advance of this consultation. We hope to publish a summary of the feedback from this

5 See paragraphs 1.1 to 1.9 in ‘Planning for sustainable growth in the Oxford- Cambridge Arc: An introduction to the
Oxford-Cambridge Arc Spatial Framework’, published from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government in February 2021, available at:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/Government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/962455/Spatial

framework policy paper.pdf Page 30

5


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/962455/Spatial_framework_policy_paper.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/962455/Spatial_framework_policy_paper.pdf

1. Introduction

early engagement in the near future for your information. All feedback received will be
further considered in combination with this public consultation.

1.18 On how we should engage different people, we heard that:

e people across the Arc really care about their local areas, and want to have an
opportunity at the beginning of this process to tell us what they like, and what
could be better;

e people want to see the data and evidence we have on the Arc, where available;
and

e people really want to be engaged in this process, although not necessarily in the
same way.

1.19 We also learned how we can communicate best with a wide audience. People told us

1.20

how much they care about the area and want to influence how it develops for the better
through this planning process. However, many found the language and terminology used,
such as planning policy, a barrier. We have taken this feedback on board and reflected it
in the approach and design of this consultation. We have kept the language and content
as simple and short as possible. The aim is to reach as wide and diverse an audience as
possible through this consultation, in particular those people who do not normally engage
in planning.

We heard a lot of different views on what our focus and priorities for the future of the Arc
and the Spatial Framework should be, but there were some common themes. You can
see more about what people told us in the sections that follow on each pillar or policy
theme. In summary:

e the four policy ‘pillars’ or themes — the environment, the economy, connectivity
and infrastructure, and place-making — reflected much of what the people we
spoke to value and what they are worried about in their area;

e people strongly supported environmental sustainability and connectivity as
priorities — for example, people told us they want to see environmental
improvement and more space for nature, and would like to see local transport
options improved;

e younger people in particular saw an opportunity to support more education and
job opportunities, but they also wanted growth to be environmentally sustainable;
and

e there was a lot of worry about rising house prices and the cost of living, as well
as acceptance that new homes were needed, but focus upon the character of
places, health, well-being, the environment, climate change and improving local
infrastructure, such as walking and cycling paths, green space, and healthcare
facilities.

Page 31




1. Introduction

1.21

1.22

1.23

We have used this to help:

¢ inform the types of questions we are asking in this consultation;

¢ guide the data and evidence we have provided alongside it, and how we have
presented this; and

e shape how we are engaging, including through this digital platform.

For this consultation and for our future work on the Spatial Framework, we will continue to
develop our approach based on feedback we receive and the evidence base that we are
preparing.

You can find out more about how we are planning to engage in Chapter 6.

Next steps

1.24

1.25

1.26

This consultation will run for 12 weeks, closing on 12 October 2021. We hope this will
give anyone interested an opportunity to have their say.

We will consider all comments received to this consultation which, alongside other
considerations, will help create the Spatial Framework’s vision for the Arc to 2050 and
inform the development of the Sustainability Appraisal. In spring 2022, we expect to
publish the vision as well as a public consultation on options for the policies in the Spatial
Framework. We will also publish a summary of comments received and our response as
part of this consultation, so you can see how views have been taken into account.

The development of the Spatial Framework will be supported by two further public
consultations:

e Towards a Spatial Framework — using the vision as a foundation, we will
develop options for delivering its objectives. The options will be based on
feedback from engagement, initial evidence gathering and analysis. We hope to
publish this, including a Sustainable Appraisal ‘Issues and Options’ Report, for
public consultation in spring 2022 to give everyone a chance to have their say;
and

e Draft Spatial Framework — to finalise the Spatial Framework, we will consider
responses to the previous consultation, and undertake further spatial analysis,
option testing, impact assessments and engagement. We hope to publish the
draft Spatial Framework with its Sustainability Appraisal Environmental Report,
for consultation in autumn 2022, with implementation of the final framework
shortly after.

Page 32



1. Introduction

What do you think?

What is your positive vision for the Arc in the future?

2050.

fears?

1. What place could it be? What words come to mind?

Sustainable

Sense of community
Equal/ inclusive
Progressive
Collaborates for better outcomes
More life opportunities
Better environment
Eco-friendly
Connected

Better transport

Better infrastructure
Thriving economy
Better place

Better homes

More available homes
More affordable homes
Other — please specify

2. If you can, we would love you to tell us more about your vision for the Arc to

3. How do you feel overall about the future of the Arc? What are your hopes and

Page 33




1. Introduction

We are preparing the OxCam Arc Spatial Framework to make the most of the
area’s unique potential for economic growth to 2050 and beyond.

4. What do you think are the most important things that it needs to do, as a strategic
plan, to achieve this? Work at an Arc-wide level to tackle shared issues/
opportunities on:

e Environment

e Economy

e Connectivity and growth

e Place-making

e Supporting monitoring and delivery

5. If there is anything you would like to add, we would love you to tell us.

Page 34



2. The Environment

2. The Environment

Our ambition for the Arc’s environment

2.1 The government wants to support growth in the Arc in a way that is sustainable —
by improving the natural environment and making sure it is protected, and can
recover from harm. This will help us to meet our commitment to combat and build
resilience to climate change. We think there is an opportunity for the Arc to become a
world-leader for environmental sustainability over the coming decades.

The Arc’s environment today

2.2 The Oxford-Cambridge Arc is already home to precious habitats and biodiversity,
green spaces which are highly valued and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONBS). For example®:

e the landscapes of its Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty in the Chilterns, the
North Wessex and Downs and the Cotswolds;

¢ biodiverse woodlands and grasslands, with over 200,000 ha of statutory
designated nature conservation sites;

e the areas of wildflower-rich meadows and species-rich fenland in
Cambridgeshire;

e around 31,000 ha of ancient woodlands, from Wychwood in Oxfordshire to the
Whittlewood Forest in Northamptonshire;

e there are over 5,700 km of rivers and streams across the Arc; and

e the 6,000 acres’ of green public space in Milton Keynes.

6 You can find more information in the Scoping Report for the Spatial Framework’s Sustainability Appraisal,
available at: https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/creating-a-vision-for-the-oxford-cambridge-arc

7 Taken from the ‘Facts and Figures’ webpage of the Milton Keynes Parks Trust. Available at:
https://www.theparkstrust.com/our-work/about-us/fqma@é-f%gei/ 0



https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/creating-a-vision-for-the-oxford-cambridge-arc
https://www.theparkstrust.com/our-work/about-us/facts-and-figures/

2. The Environment

76%

31 ,OOQ ha of the Arc’s land is
of ancient farmland - a third of
woodlands it Grade 1 and 2

200,000 ha /\.
of statutory y

3
AONB’s together
designated nature covering 10% of
conservation sites the Arc
8.6% - 17,000 km
of England’s of public
land area rights of way

. of local
of rivers and streams e )
wildlife sites

\\’ :
5.700 km % 50,000 ha

Source: OxCam Local Natural Capital Plan, SA Scoping Report

Figure 2.1 — Key facts on the Arc’s environment today

2.3

2.4

However, there are real challenges®. Air quality is poor in many parts of the Arc, caused
in part by high rates of car use, and this is harming the environment and the health of
local residents. Flood risk is high and growing, particularly around the floodplains of the
Arc’s major rivers. The Arc’s natural environment has declined in quality, and become
less connected over the last 40 years, and we know that people’s access to open areas
of nature rich countryside can be limited. The Arc is also one of the most water stressed
areas of the country; which means that sustainable abstraction and water resilience is
key to future planning. Finally, the impact of COVID-19 has shown the importance of
natural green space to healthy lifestyles — but many existing sites of value for nature are
already heavily used for a range of recreational activities, which is having a negative
impact.

If you would like to know more about the Arc’s environment and the social and economic
context of the area today, you can read more in the Scoping Report for the Spatial
Framework’s Sustainability Appraisal®, which is part of this consultation, including
guestions related the scope of the Sustainability Appraisal in Chapter 8.

How the Spatial Framework could help us to realise our
ambition

2.5

The Spatial Framework offers a unique opportunity to preserve and enhance a
green Arc and support nature recovery, improve air quality, reduce flood risk and
improve access to nature and green space across the area. We have committed to
support this, including by:

Page 36 1


https://www.oxcamlncp.org/

2. The Environment

e developing policy to take a more coordinated approach to the environment, by:

o making sure that the environment is at the centre of economic, transport and
housing and planning decisions;

o taking an integrated approach to water management and flood risk, cleaner
air, sustainable land management, nature recovery, climate change mitigation
and adaptation, in line with the government’s 25 Year Environment Plan®, Net
Zero ambitions® and Clean Growth Strategy*?;

o making sure natural capital forms a key part of planning and decision-making,
understanding what nature provides us and the value that brings so that we
can invest and improve it (including by using the environmental baseline
identified in the government led Local Natural Capital Plan! that has been
developed for the Arc);

o using Local Nature Recovery Strategies'? to inform priorities.
e setting policy to:

o support retention of, and investment in, key existing and potential new
habitats;

o Iimprove access to nature and green space for all whilst ensuring nature
conservation;

o set high standards for new development, including on carbon emissions,
active travel, water management, green space, different types of green
infrastructure, and biodiversity;

o support an integrated approach to water management, taking into account
sustainable water abstraction and drought resilience, water quality, reducing
risk and building resilience to flooding and how and where new infrastructure
should be developed;

o support clean air outcomes, with clear links to housing and transport policies;

o improve natural capital across the Arc.

8 You can find more information on the government’s 25 Year Environment Plan here:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/Government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/693158/25-
year-environment-plan.pdf

9 See the Climate Change Act 2008 (as amended). You can find more information on some of the government’s
proposals for Net Zero here: https://www.gov.uk/Government/publications/energy-white-paper-powering-our-net-
zero-future/energy-white-paper-powering-our-net-zero-future-accessible-html-version

10 You can find more information on the government’s Clean Growth Strategy here:
https://www.gov.uk/Government/publications/clean-growth-strateqy

11 See Local Natural Capital Plan for the Oxford to Cambridge Arc, developed by the Environment Agency.
Available at: https://www.oxcamincp.org/

12 You can find more information on Local Nature Recovery Strategies here:
https://www.gov.uk/Government/publications/environment-bill-2020/10-march-2020-nature-and-conservation-

covenants-parts-6-and-7 Page 37

12


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/693158/25-year-environment-plan.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/693158/25-year-environment-plan.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/energy-white-paper-powering-our-net-zero-future/energy-white-paper-powering-our-net-zero-future-accessible-html-version
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/energy-white-paper-powering-our-net-zero-future/energy-white-paper-powering-our-net-zero-future-accessible-html-version
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean-growth-strategy
https://www.oxcamlncp.org/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/environment-bill-2020/10-march-2020-nature-and-conservation-covenants-parts-6-and-7
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/environment-bill-2020/10-march-2020-nature-and-conservation-covenants-parts-6-and-7

2. The Environment

2.6  We have also committed to identifying environmental Opportunity Areas, including for
water infrastructure, which use nature-based solutions, supporting nature recovery,
biodiversity net gain and carbon sinks, where these can bring the most benefits for
environmental sustainability.

Environmental
Opportunity
Zones

Source: Local Nature Partnerships’ Strategic-Scale Environmental Opportunity Mapping:
Doubling Nature in the Oxford-Cambridge Arc

Figure 2.2 — Strategic-scale environmental opportunity zones*3

2.7 To ensure sustainability is embedded in the Spatial Framework we are producing a
Sustainability Appraisal. The aim is to address environmental issues alongside social
and economic issues as the Spatial Framework and its policies develop. This will inform
decision-making and help achieve improved sustainability outcomes. A Sustainability
Appraisal Scoping Report® has been prepared as part of this consultation. This provides

13 For more information about each of these zones, please refer to the Local Nature Partnerships’ Strategic-Scale
Environmental Opportunity Mapping: Doubling Nature in the Oxford-Cambridge Arc, available at:
https://bucksmknep.co.uk/download/2469/ Page 38

13


https://bucksmknep.co.uk/download/2469/
https://bucksmknep.co.uk/download/2469/
https://bucksmknep.co.uk/download/2469/

2. The Environment

2.8

more information on our approach and more detailed information on the Arc’s
environmental assets; social and economic context and changing climate.

We will also build on the evidence baseline identified in the government led Local Natural
Capital Plan'! that has been developed for the Arc. The government has invested in this
project with local partners to understand the Arc’s environment, its unique features,
pressures and identifying opportunities to develop and invest in nature.

What you have told us so far

2.9

We want to understand different views about the Arc’s environment to help us form our
vision. The first part of this was initial conversations in March - including with some local
residents, community and campaign groups, local authorities, and businesses. What we
were told helped us to develop our approach to engagement and understand some of the
key issues and questions for this consultation. The following summarises some of the
themes that came from these discussions.

2.10 People seem to agree on some of the good things about the Arc’s environment:

e accessible green space is highly valued by communities across the Arc and is
seen as key to well-being and quality of life; and

e environmental sustainability is a priority for all groups we have spoken to so far.

2.11 And there are some common concerns:

e the risk of flooding is a major worry for many people; and

e there are concerns about the impact of development on the environment,
particularly the loss of green space.

2.12 Meanwhile, some are unsure about the future, but have views about what the Spatial

Framework could do to support prosperity for everyone and in all parts of the Arc:

e many people told us that the Spatial Framework could be an opportunity to make
future development much more sustainable; and

e there is some doubt about whether high environmental ambitions can be
delivered.

Page 39 "



2. The Environment

2.13 This has given us a sense of some of the issues and questions we should cover in this
consultation. Now we want to hear from you to help us create a vision for the Arc’s
environment.

What do you think?

Thinking about your vision for the future of the area, how important is it that the
Spatial Framework focuses on:

Green spaces, nature, and biodiversity

1. Making sure the natural environment is protected, restored, and improved. For
example, improving new and existing green spaces.
[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

2. Making sure the most is made of the natural environment and that all people can
have access to it. For example, making improvements to woodlands, wetland, green
space and water and making sure people can visit them if they want to.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

3. Making sure new growth leaves the environment in a better state than before. For
example, keeping land in its natural state, and making it more wild, where
appropriate.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

4. Anything else to add about your vision for green spaces, nature, and
biodiversity?

Climate change resilience and net zero

5. Making sure new development helps to achieve net zero carbon at an Arc level
towards national net zero targets. For example, through good design, sustainable
travel choices, renewable energy and trapping carbon.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

6. Making sure that new development can respond to the current and future effects
of climate change. For example, through new carbon emissions, water use, waste
disposal and renewable energy targets.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

7. Anything else to add about your vision for climate change and/ or the contribution
to net zero?

Page 40 15



2. The Environment

Air quality and waste

8. Making sure new development helps to improve air quality within the Arc. For
example, through high quality design, low emission zones and sustainable
transport.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

9. Taking a combined approach to air quality across the Arc. For example, through
being careful about where each land uses should go, supporting journeys via public
transport and active travel and enhancing green spaces and routes across the area.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

10. Making better use of resources and managing waste. For example, promoting
the re-use of materials, and protecting and improving soil quality and minerals.
[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

11. Anything else to add about your vision for air quality and waste?

Water

12. Promoting a combined approach to managing water across the Arc,

through protecting water resources, improving water quality and reducing the risk
of flooding. For example, treating wastewater, improving water storage, and reusing
surface runoff.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

13. Making sure new development reduces existing flood risk and is resilient to
future flooding. For example, through tree planting and multifunctional
sustainable drainage.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

14. Improving water availability and cutting the risk of drought. For example,
through new sustainable water resources and infrastructure, and measures which
reduce water use.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

15. Anything else to add about your vision for water?

Page 41 16



3. The Economy

3. The Economy

Our ambition for the Arc’s economy

3.1 The government’s priority for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc is sustainable economic
growth. We are putting sustainable economic growth first because we think that the Arc
can be one of the most productive places in the world by creating new jobs, improving the
standard of living and the quality of life for local communities. We want to support
economic growth that is sustainable — economically, socially and environmentally. Taking
this step will also help national prosperity as we build back better from the impacts of
COVID-19.

The Arc’s economy today

3.2 The Oxford-Cambridge Arc is already home to a booming and varied economy that
contributes to national prosperity. Over the last 20 years, it has grown faster than any
region outside London, and employment and wages are above the national average. It is
home to some strong and innovative sectors, world-leading companies, internationally
recognised research and development centres and research universities — for example:

e the life sciences cluster in Cambridge, which is the most productive in Europe
— with 400 companies based there and contributing £2.9 billion to the UK
economy, while also playing a critical role in developing a vaccine for COVID-
1914

e the largest space cluster in Europe is located in an area spanning Oxfordshire
and Buckinghamshire;

e the nationally leading energy cluster is in Oxfordshire, focusing on
activities to decarbonise energy production, distribution and consumption;

e the digital innovation boom in Milton Keynes, with new cutting-edge
developments in Atrtificial Intelligence and machine learning;

e Cambridge is aleading UK and global hub of innovation, its rate of patent
applications, a key indicator of innovation, is the highest in the UK outside of
London and over 12 times the national average; and

e the Arc’s 11 major higher education institutions, including the world-leading
centres of learning in Oxford and Cambridge; Cranfield University, a leader in
automotive and aerospace engineering; and the Open University.

14 Taken from The Oxford-Cambridge Arc Economic Prospectus, published by the Arc Leadership in October 2020
- available at: https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/sites/default/files/uploads/Oxford-
CambridgeArcProspectus Approved 1.pdf Page 42

17


https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/sites/default/files/uploads/Oxford-CambridgeArcProspectus_Approved_1.pdf
https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/sites/default/files/uploads/Oxford-CambridgeArcProspectus_Approved_1.pdf

3. The Economy

West of England
I

Oxford-Cambridge Arc £30,000
|

England

Greater Birmingham
and Solihull

England excluding
London

Greater Manchester

Leeds City Region

Derbyshire, Nottingham
Derby and Nottinghamshire

Liverpool City Region

North East

Sheffield City Region

& S & & &P
qsr q}@« q‘}/b“ q:bq,s
Gross Value Added (GVA) per head

Source: Internal analysis using ONS data

Figure 3.1 — The Arc’s economy (based on 2018 prices) compared to other areas in
England

Page 43 18



3. The Economy

Representation of
quantity of industries

o 1 o
® > Peterborough

.3 o)

Northampton

Cambridge
®

Bedford
b ®
® o
Milton Keynes °®
Luton @ it Science
O\ . Future Transport
[ ]
® ® @ creative & Digital
Sila °® Future Energy
High Wycombe Advanced Manufacturing
Y L Aviation & Space
(P oo @ O Group of Industries
@

Figure 3.2 — Economic clusters in the Arc

3.3 This growth has brought benefits to places and communities across the area, but
we know these have not been felt by all, and communities are worried for the
future. For example, places like Oxford, Cambridge and Milton Keynes have seen
significant economic and wage growth®; however, this has not been spread evenly
across these centres or in other towns and rural areas. The cost of homes has grown a
lot over the years, particularly in these areas. Local communities are worried that people
and businesses do not have access to the right infrastructure that they need such as
better transport connections and digital services.

15 Internal analysis using ONS data. Page 44 1



3. The Economy

85
80
9
e
12
€ 75
[}
£
>
ke,
Q.
E
L
70

— Oxford-Cambridge Arc

England Average

65

X O O A DO O NI DO N0 0 A Q9O

O V7 Q7 O Q7 O N7 NN N7 N N7 NN N N7

I PP PR PP P P

Source: Internal analysis using ONS data
Figure 3.3 — Employment growth in the Arc

Page 45 -



3. The Economy

M 2000 [ 2019

361,300

Manufacturing,
Construction,
Utilities

-9.9% Y

Public
Administration,
Education, Health

362,400

45.7%A

Accommodation, 188,500
Entertainment, ‘
Recreation,

Other Services 31.8% ¢

374,300

Wholesale, Retail,

Transport, Storage
22.4% P

Professional, 309,700

Real Estate,

Business Services 50% A

122,000

Information,
Communication,
Financial, Insurance

Number of Jobs

Source: Internal analysis using ONS data
Figure 3.4 — Employment by sector in the Arc?®

16 Culture and tourism services are included in the ‘Accommodation, entertainment, recreation and other services’

class Page 46 ’



3. The Economy

How the Spatial Framework could help us to deliver our
ambition

3.4

3.5

We want to use the Spatial Framework to help tackle these problems. We want to
make the most of the economic potential of the Arc by planning for sustainable
growth and making the Arc an even more attractive place for all to live, work and
do business. We have committed to doing this by:

e developing an Economic Strategy, supported by strong economic evidence, to
identify the policies, locations and investment needed to deliver the Arc’s
potential for sustainable and green economic growth;

e setting policies to make sure growth is felt by all communities and the Arc
becomes a better place to live and work for all, such as by providing more
housing in the right places, making sure people can move around by public
transport and other infrastructure, and enhancing the Arc’s natural capital'?;

e setting policies which help local planning authorities to plan for new business
and employment space, support small and medium-sized enterprises (SMES),
and places for global companies; and

e setting policies to meet the needs of different sectors and businesses — from
large firms to start-ups and promoting the green economy, industry, innovation
and technology.

Together, these will help businesses find the space they need for new jobs and help local
communities. The government is also considering setting up a new Arc Growth Body!’
that would be a clear economic leadership voice to help businesses and innovation within
the Arc. It would also help boost the area’s potential as a global innovation powerhouse
by promoting the Arc internationally.

What you have told us so far

3.6

3.7

We want to understand different views about the Arc’'s economy to help us form our
vision. The first part of this was initial conversations in March - including with some local
residents, community and campaign groups, local authorities, and businesses. What we
were told helped us to develop our approach to engagement and understand some of the
key issues and questions for this consultation. The following summarises some of the
themes that came from these discussions.

People seem to agree on some of the good things about the Arc’s economy:

17 See press release from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government on the intention to establish
the Arc Growth Body, available at: https://www.gov.uk/Government/news/Government-plan-to-transform-oxford-

cambridge-arc-into-uk-s-fastest-growing-economic-[&HR A 47
1 ug\.,

22



https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-plan-to-transform-oxford-cambridge-arc-into-uk-s-fastest-growing-economic-region
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-plan-to-transform-oxford-cambridge-arc-into-uk-s-fastest-growing-economic-region

3. The Economy

¢ residents and businesses were excited by the potential for jobs growth and
innovation in the Arc;

e younger people really value employment and education in many parts of the Arc;
and

e people want to see their local high streets and local retail and leisure businesses
grow.

3.8 And there are some common concerns:

e some residents are worried about the loss of retail that they have seen on some
high streets;

¢ that the benefits of economic growth, such as greater investment and more jobs,
may not be felt in all places, leading to greater inequality; and

e there is also doubt about whether growth could be sustained for the long-term.

3.9 Meanwhile, some are unsure about the future, but have views about what the Spatial
Framework could do to help all parts of the Arc:

¢ some wonder who will be the winners and losers of growth;

e we need to understand the needs of different sectors, industries and types of job
in the Arc; and

e the Spatial Framework should be ambitious and should focus on the strategic
national importance of the region.

3.10 This has given us a sense of some of the issues and questions we should cover in this
consultation. Now we want to hear from you to help us create a vision for economy in the
Arc.

Page 48 -



3. The Economy

What do you think?

Thinking about your vision for the future of the area, how important is it that the
Spatial Framework focuses on:

Education and training

1. Making sure the Arc keeps growing as a place of educational excellence,
partnership and research. For example, through growth which helps existing
universities and colleges.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

2. Making sure the economic benefits of growth are felt by all communities within
the Arc. For example, through putting new education and training facilities in places
where more people can easily get to go to them.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

3. Anything else to add about your vision for education and training?

Jobs and businesses

4. Making sure that the Arc keeps growing as a place for business, science and
technology, and innovation. For example, through putting these types of new
workspaces in places where they can make the most of cross-sector collaboration.
[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

5. Making sure that existing industries keep growing within the Arc. For example,
through putting industries in the best places to suit their needs.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

6. Making sure the Arc builds upon and grows its skills, expertise and capabilities.
For example, through making sure people can get around easily to bring the right
people to the right job locations.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

7. Making sure that the right types of buildings are provided in the Arc so that
businesses can keep growing as well as supporting the green economy. For
example, through building new flexible and adaptable workspaces meeting the
needs of arange of different businesses of different sizes.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

8. Anything else to add about your vision for jobs and businesses?

Page 49 ”



4. Connectivity and Infrastructure

4.

Connectivity and Infrastructure

Our ambition for connectivity and infrastructure in the Arc

4.1

We want the Oxford-Cambridge Arc to be a great place to live and work — now and
in the future. That means it will need to be better connected — by making it easier for
walking, cycling, and public transport to become first choice for everyone in the Arc. It will
also mean making places that reduce the need to travel in the first place. And it means
improving communities’ access to the services they need — like a good quality,
sustainable water supply and broadband, schools, cycle lanes and healthcare, as part of
a great approach to place-making.

Connectivity and infrastructure in the Arc today

4.2

4.3

The government is already investing in a major new rail link to connect Oxford to
Cambridge via Milton Keynes and Bedford — the East West Rail project*®. This would
create a new east-west connection'® across the Arc to link some of its major towns and
cities — making it easier, more accessible and more sustainable to travel across the area
and better connect with the Arc’s businesses and research institutions.

The Arc is also home to businesses and universities that are leading the way in
developing new technology which will shape the way we live in the future, including for
vehicles that will make travel more sustainable — such as electric cars and robotic
delivery vehicles.

18 You can find more information about the East West Rail project at: https://eastwestrail.co.uk/
19 This was a major theme of the National Infrastructure Commission’s analysis of the Arc. See the NIC’s final

report, Partnering for Prosperity (2017), availablq:aé@@%.orq.uk/app/uploads//Partnerinq-for-Prospertv.pdf

25


https://eastwestrail.co.uk/
https://nic.org.uk/app/uploads/Partnering-for-Prosperty.pdf

4. Connectivity and Infrastructure

Al

Midlands Engine

K\

Sl

ol '};t An{\a\‘
. T
R
N A T
V\gern Gatew\ﬂ 1 %
eSS ’;Y i AN \ : II = = Rail
, \ AW IA XK Airport
- -= \\\ g _:kl\\\\\\\’///////z_ PIaF;ess(over 100,000 people)
ST~ .._/London\‘ <) Places (below 100,000 people)
‘% //////M\\\\\\ 4% Connections
Figure 4.1 — Major transport links in the Arc today

Page 51

26



4. Connectivity and Infrastructure

~ 7 o R | Wastewater
rdb \\= ' ' Treatment Works

@ Electricity Substation

e T Y igh Wycombe I Flood Zone 3

o g._ V ad o g
Source: Flood map for planning, data summarised from published Water Cycle Studies and
Water Quality Assessments for Local Planning Authorities across the Arc, National Grid

Figure 4.2 — Flooding and selected utilities infrastructure in the Arc today

Page 52

27


https://flood-map-for-planning.service.gov.uk/

4. Connectivity and Infrastructure

4.4 We know we need to do more. Studies tell us that a lack of transport and utilities
infrastructure in different towns and cities in the Arc can hold back the area’s growth and
sustainability:

e we know that many people rely on private cars, and that to tackle climate
change and improve air quality we will need to encourage them to travel by
bike, foot or public transport instead. 67% of people travelling to work — pre-
COVID-19 — go by car, compared with 60% nationally. Carbon emissions from
transport are higher in the area at 47%— compared with 37% nationally?°;

e there are long-standing concerns about utility supplies — including water,
flooding, digital, clean energy and waste recycling — to meet the growing needs
of the Arc’s communities and businesses, and the challenges of climate change;
and

e the Arc’s population is likely to grow, age and become more diverse over
the coming decades??, which will bring new demands for social infrastructure
such as healthcare, but also risks of increasing existing inequalities — including
health inequality — that we know exist today.

How the Spatial Framework could help to deliver our ambition

4.5 We have a unique opportunity to address these challenges by planning for
sustainable infrastructure in the Oxford-Cambridge Arc through the Spatial
Framework. We will be able to set national planning and transport policy for the area,
and prioritise projects that should be considered for investment. We have committed to:

20 These figures are for the area including Hertfordshire and Swindon. See England’s Economic Heartland (2020)
Transport Strategy, available at: https://eeh-prod-
media.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/Connecting People Transforming Journeys av.pdf

21 Internal analysis based on ONS population data, available at:
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/bulletins/na
tionalpopulationprojections/2018based Page 53

28


https://eeh-prod-media.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/Connecting_People_Transforming_Journeys_av.pdf
https://eeh-prod-media.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/Connecting_People_Transforming_Journeys_av.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/bulletins/nationalpopulationprojections/2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/bulletins/nationalpopulationprojections/2018based

4. Connectivity and Infrastructure

¢ identifying and mapping the existing transport, health, education, accessible
natural green spaces, utilities, green (land) and blue (water) infrastructure and
other infrastructure at an Arc-wide scale;

¢ identifying the long-term need for new infrastructure and the investment across
the Arc to 2050, taking into account climate change, and gaps in existing
provision;

e using this work to create an infrastructure plan to support future growth and
place-making, such as:

o delivering sustainable and public transport;
o protecting and enhancing the environment;

o giving communities access to the public services they need — including
education and health;

o making sure our waste is minimised, recycled or disposed of sustainably
where this is the only option;

o providing the water, digital and utilities infrastructure needed to support
growth;

e setting strategic policies for local transport authorities and local planning
authorities, building on the England’s Economic Heartland transport strategy??
and evidence base, including the four key principles for transport connectivity in
the area:

o aiming for net zero carbon emissions from transport by 2040, but no later
than 2050;

o improving quality of life and wellbeing through a safe and inclusive transport
system for all;

o connecting people and businesses to markets and opportunities;

o making sure people and goods can more efficiently through the area and
to/from international gateways, in a way which reduces the environmental
impact;

e setting strategic climate resilience and air quality policies based on air quality
modelling; and

e setting strategic policies to support investment in new water, digital, utilities,
green and blue infrastructure alongside new development.

22 See England’s Economic Heartland (2020) Transport Strategy, available at: https://eeh-prod-
media.s:?».amazonaws.com/documents/Connectir!:t;’uﬂ3 | ransforming_Journeys av.pdf

29


https://eeh-prod-media.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/Connecting_People_Transforming_Journeys_av.pdf
https://eeh-prod-media.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/Connecting_People_Transforming_Journeys_av.pdf

4. Connectivity and Infrastructure

What you have told us so far

4.6  We want to understand different views about the Arc’s economy to help us form our
vision. The first part of this was initial conversations in March - including with some local
residents, community and campaign groups, local authorities, and businesses. What we
were told helped us to develop our approach to engagement and understand some of the
key issues and questions for this consultation. The following summarises some of the
themes that came from these discussions.

4.7 People seem to agree on some of the priorities for the future:

e transport should be more environmentally sustainable; and

e it should be easier to walk and cycle within towns and cities.

4.8 And there are some common concerns:

e that growth will put pressure on existing infrastructure, such as roads and
transport capacity; and

e about transport options in rural communities in particular, but also across the
Arc.

4.9 We also heard a range of views about what how the Spatial Framework can help
connectivity and infrastructure in all parts of the Arc, including that:

e it should create specific plans for new transport and infrastructure;

e it should support a shift away from cars towards walking, cycling, rail and bus
travel;

e it should support more investment in homes and infrastructure in towns and
villages across the area; and

e it should ensure that new developments are better designed to support walking
and cycling.

4.10 This has given us a sense of some of the issues and questions we should cover in this
consultation. Now we want to hear from you to help us create a vision for infrastructure
and connectivity in the Arc.

Page 55 20



4. Connectivity and Infrastructure

What do you think?

Thinking about the future of the area, how important is it that the Spatial
Framework focuses on:

Infrastructure

1. Making sure planning takes a combined approach to new development by
providing the infrastructure and services required at the right time to support
growth. For example, by planning for the need for utilities (e.g. water, energy, waste)
and community infrastructure (e.g. schools, hospitals, GP surgeries).

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

2. Making sure new development makes the most of existing resources. For
example, through making sure that materials are reused, renewable energy supplies
are used, and waste is properly planned for.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

3. Making sure that digital infrastructure is put in at the same time as other
development takes place. For example, speeding up the fitting of high-speed
broadband to support home-based work and help new ways of learning.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

4. Anything else to add about your vision for infrastructure?

Page 56

31




4. Connectivity and Infrastructure

New development

5. Making sure growth within the Arc is placed around areas with better transport
links. For example, through having more development around stations and bus
routes, supported by cycling and walking tracks.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

6. Making sure new development cuts down the need to travel around the local area.
For example, through providing safe and easy walking and cycling routes to town
centres, shops and schools.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

7. Making sure new developments reduce existing and future infrastructure demand
and resources used. For example, making sure that designs leave enough space for
existing and future measures which reduce energy and water use, and cut down on
waste.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

8. Making sure sustainable transport principles are included in the design of new
developments. For example, by designhing new developments in a way that enables
people to walk or cycle all or part of their journeys.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

9. Anything else to add about new developments in the context of connectivity and
infrastructure?

Page 57 2




4. Connectivity and Infrastructure

Getting around

10. Creating better transport connections across the Arc and making sure they are
provided in a way which supports sustainable new growth. For example, by
planning for public transport and physical transport infrastructure requirements.
[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

11. Making sure there are more opportunities for active travel such as walking and
cycling across the Arc. For example, wider pavements, segregated cycle lanes,
improved network of cycle lanes, and better pedestrian crossings.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

12. Making sure that there is the right form of public transport in the right areas
across the Arc and can be used by all travellers, including people with
any particular needs.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

13. Cutting down on the impact of cars and other private vehicles within the Arc. For
example, by supporting more sustainable forms of private travel like cycling.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

14. Anything else to add about your vision of getting around?

Page 58 23



5. Place-making

5. Place-making

Our ambition for place-making in the Arc

5.1 Place-making is the process of designing and creating great places to live, work,
play and learn in. We think there is an opportunity for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc to
be a world-leader in sustainable place-making and community living.

5.2  We know that, as the Arc grows, new homes and places will be needed. Our ambition is
to help ensure those new homes and places are great places to live by being more
sustainable, beautiful and green, and have better access to the services and
infrastructure they need. And we want to improve existing places and learn from those
that are most valued by local communities as we think about the places of the future.

Place-making in the Arc today

5.3 The Oxford-Cambridge Arc is already home to great places — old and new. For
example:

the medieval centres of Oxford and Cambridge;
historic market towns such as Bedford, Aylesbury and Wellingborough;

Milton Keynes, a leading example of a post-war ‘new town’, with 6,000 acres’ of
protected green space for public use;

the beautiful villages and rural areas that characterise many parts of the Arc;
the new self-build development at Graven Hill in Bicester, Oxfordshire, a great
example of how new development can create opportunities for more people to

design and build their own homes; and

the new University-led Eddington development in North West Cambridge, which
demonstrates best practice and award-winning design.

5.4 We want to make the most of opportunities to enhance existing places and learn from
those that are most valued by local communities as we think about the places of the
future. We know that the Arc has the potential for more sustainable growth and places to
meet current and further needs.

5.5 We are concerned about the affordability and availability of housing in the Arc, and
what this will mean for the Arc’s communities, economy and environment.
Development of new homes is already happening in the Arc, but in the main centres this
has not kept up with need. We also know people are being priced out of the area,
increasing the need to make more polluting journeys for work and leisure, and making

Page 59 "




5. Place-making

home ownership less likely for many. And we have heard concerns about the quality and
sustainability of new development.

How the Spatial Framework could help us to deliver our
ambition

5.6

5.7

5.8

We want to use the Spatial Framework to make sure that we build places that the
Arc needs to support sustainable growth, and that communities will enjoy for
decades and centuries to come. We know that local authorities and local communities
through Local Plans and Neighbourhood Plans are already working to plan for a better
future for their areas, and we want to work closely with them in this process. We have
committed to doing this by using the Spatial Framework, supported by the Sustainability
Appraisal, to identify:

e the most sustainable locations for new homes, including identifying Opportunity
Areas, to support local planning authorities to plan for this growth;

¢ the infrastructure — such as transport, health and education facilities, utilities and
digital — needed to support sustainable growth in those locations, and the key
locations for strategic infrastructure; and

e locations to protect and improve the environmental as part of sustainable growth
and development.

We will also seek to set policies to enable:

e new development to come forward at the scale and speed needed, in
sustainable locations, with a focus on brownfield redevelopment;

e new development to support the recovery of nature, new green space that can
be accessed by all, resilience to climate change, and protection of highly valued
existing green space; and

e housing needs to be met in full, including much-needed affordable housing.

In parallel to the development of the Spatial Framework, the government is also exploring
options to speed up new housing and infrastructure development in the Arc to help meet
its ambitions, where evidence supports it. This includes examining (and where
appropriate, developing) the case for new and/or expanded settlements in the Arc,
including options informed by possible East West Rail stations between Bedford and
Cambridge and growth options at Cambridge itself. The government will undertake
additional Arc consultations on any specific proposals for such options as appropriate.
The Spatial Framework will guide the future growth of the Arc to 2050, including on the
guestion of new housing and infrastructure and will, as part of its development, take into

Page 60 a5



5. Place-making

consideration any significant new housing and infrastructure coming forward to meet the
Arc's ambition.

What have you told us so far

5.9

We want to understand different views about place-making in the Arc to help us form our
vision. The first part of this was initial conversations in March, including with some local
residents, community and campaign groups, local authorities, and businesses. What we
were told helped us to develop our approach to engagement and understand some of the
key issues and questions for this consultation. The following summarises some of the
themes that came from these discussions.

5.10 People seem to agree on some of the good things about the Arc’s places today:

e green space, and play and sports facilities are highly valued;
e historic and beautiful buildings are highly valued by local residents; and

e some people welcome new homes and investment in their towns and villages.

5.11 And there are some common concerns:

e there are worries about a lack of affordable housing and rising house prices;

e some residents are concerned about pressures from housing developments on
existing infrastructure, particularly in rural areas;

e there is some concern about how new development would connect with existing
places; and

e some expressed concerns that towns and cities would receive most of the
development focus with rural areas being left behind.

5.12 Meanwhile, we heard a range of views about what the Spatial Framework could do to

support place-making in all parts of the Arc, including that:

e well-being, health and quality of life should be addressed in the Spatial
Framework;

e sustainability and community living are highly valued; and

¢ we should take a joined-up approach to place-making and planning.

Page 61 36



5. Place-making

5.13 This has given us a sense of some of the issues and questions we should cover in this
consultation. Now we want to hear from you to help us create a vision for place-making in
the Arc.

What do you think?

Thinking about the future of the area, how important is it that the Spatial
Framework focuses on:

Location of growth

1. Making sure new developments are built in the most sustainable locations, for the
environment, the economy and communities. For example, by developing
brownfield redevelopment and making sure they have good access to town centres,
shops and schools.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

2. Anything else to add about your vision for location of growth?

Homes in your area

3. Ensuring the right types of housing are delivered in the right locations to meet the
needs of both renters and buyers. For example, family houses, first-time buyers,
specialist housing, student accommodation and opportunities for people to build
their own homes.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

4. Increasing the amount and availability of affordable homes within the Arc.
[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

5. Anything else to add about your vision for homes in your area?

Page 62 a7




5. Place-making

Design of new developments and streets

6. Making sure a coordinated approach is taken to the design and delivery of new
developments to ensure they are supported by new and existing infrastructure.
[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

7. Making sure the environment and sustainability is at the heart of new
developments. For example, by improving the built and natural environment, making
sure development complements surrounding areas, and is supported by the right
level of infrastructure.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

8. Making sure there is the right mix of uses in new developments to help make high
quality and thriving new places.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

9. Making sure new developments help support healthy lifestyles for existing and
future communities. For example, through walking and cycling, high quality green
spaces, and accessible streets.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

10. Making sure new developments promote resilience to climate change. For
example, through green roofs, managing surface water, tree planting, storing
rainwater and new green spaces.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

11. Anything else to add about your vision for the design of new developments and
streets?

Page 63 a8



6. Our commitment to engaging communities

6.

Our commitment to engaging
communities

Why do we want to engage?

6.1

6.2

We want to ensure the Spatial Framework is built on a vision shared with

communities it will serve. We intend to undertake effective, innovative and people-

focused consultation with those that live and work in the Arc, so that everyone —

particularly those who are normally under-represented in consultations of this kind — has

a chance to have their say about the Spatial Framework.

We aim to conduct wide and meaningful engagement throughout this process to
give as many people as possible the opportunity to influence how the Spatial
Framework develops. To achieve this, we will need to work closely with stakeholders

including local authorities, businesses, social enterprises, Local Enterprise Partnerships,

sub-national transport bodies and academia to reach and capture the widest possible

range of views possible.

Our commitment to you

6.3

We want to deliver an exemplary programme of engagement throughout this two-

year process. We are committed to doing this in a way that is:

e collaborative — we will work with stakeholders, including local councils,

engagement;

yet retains sufficient flexibility to meet our delivery milestones;

reach the right people in the right way throughout the process;

beyond traditional channels of engagement and take individual needs into
account; and

accessible policy engagement.

businesses and universities to build on local relationships and foster meaningful

e adaptable — we will adopt an engagement strategy which is clear and consistent

e integrated — we will adopt a multi-method engagement approach so that we can

e inclusive — our engagement approach will prioritise inclusivity. We strive to go

o digital-first — we will make better use of digital tools to support better, more

Page 64

39




6. Our commitment to engaging communities

What have we done so far?

6.4

6.5

At each stage of our work so far, we have been informed by local partners:

in 2019, we published a joint declaration?® between government and local
partners?*, where we agreed to work collaboratively in realising the Arc’s
potential and exploring options for long-term planning in the Arc. These
relationships mean that we are not starting from scratch and have an opportunity
to build on existing knowledge and evidence. Continued engagement with this
now evolved original group of local partners, many of whom are represented on
the Arc Leaders Group, is important to ensuring the Spatial Framework supports
long-term sustainable growth for the Arc, and is as effective as possible;

in February 2021, we formally launched the process to develop the Spatial
Framework!. We made a commitment to consulting and engaging three times
during that process, and to do so in a way that is open, collaborative, digital and
inclusive; and

in early 2021, to prepare for this consultation, we held some initial
conversations with around 120 residents and representatives of businesses,
local authorities, charities and campaign groups. We used these sessions to test
our approach to consultation, including by hearing initial views on priorities for
the future, and gathering views on effective ways to engage with different
groups. We hope to publish a summary of the feedback from this early
engagement in the near future for your information. All the feedback received will
be further considered in combination with this public consultation.

The government has also invested in the development of a Local Natural Capital Plan'!
for the Arc. Over the last 18 months, we have worked with local partners to understand
the area’s environment, which has identified the unique features, pressures and
opportunities to develop and invest in nature.

23 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, The Oxford-Cambridge Arc: Government ambition and
joint declaration between Government and local partners, March 2019. Available at:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/Government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/799993/OxCa

m_Arc_Ambition.pdf

24 This joint declaration has been agreed between the Government, local authorities across the Oxford-Cambridge
Arc, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority, the Arc’s four Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPS),

and England’s Economic Heartland. Page 65

40


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/799993/OxCam_Arc_Ambition.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/799993/OxCam_Arc_Ambition.pdf

6. Our commitment to engaging communities

How will our engagement be structured?

6.6

This consultation is the first phase of formal public consultation taking place in summer
2021. Two further phases of consultation will follow on the Spatial Framework, that will be
supported by ongoing engagement with local partners. The precise timing of phases on
the Spatial Framework will be subject to the outcome of the Sustainability Appraisal
process, but are intended to be as per the following indicative phasing:

Vision: 12-week public consultation to develop a vision for the Arc.

Towards a Spatial Framework: publication of an interim document setting
out options for policy and launch of second public consultation. Using the
vision as a foundation, we will develop options for delivering its objectives. The
options will be based on feedback from engagement, initial evidence gathering
and analysis. It is highly likely that these options will consider strategic growth
locations and distribution of growth. We hope to publish this, including a
Sustainable Appraisal ‘Issues and Options’ Report, for public consultation in
spring 2022 to give everyone a chance to have their say.

Draft Spatial Framework: publication of the draft Spatial Framework
alongside third public consultation. To finalise the Spatial Framework, we will
consider responses to the previous consultation, and undertake further spatial
analysis, option testing, impact assessments and engagement. We hope to
publish the draft Spatial Framework with its Sustainability Appraisal
Environmental Report, for consultation in autumn 2022, with implementation of
the final framework shortly after.

Page 66 a1



6. Our commitment to engaging communities

Engagement roadmap

2019 - 2020
Engagement with local partners on Spatial
Framework

February 2021

Launch of Spatial Framework Policy paper,
setting out its purpose and production process
including engagement approach

Vision

Spring 2021
Early activities with local partners and public to
test engagement methods

Summer 2021

12-week public consultation on creating a vision
for the Arc and the proposed scope of the
Sustainability Appraisal via digital platform,
complemented by virtual stakeholder events,
digital and social media activity

Spring 2022

Publication of Spatial Framework policy options
and Sustainability Appraisal ‘Issues and Options’
Report for public consultation

Towards
the Spatial
Framework

Autumn 2022

Publication of the Draft Spatial Framework
and Sustainability Appraisal Environmental
Report for consultation

Draft Spatial
Framework

Final Spatial
Framework

Publication of the Spatial Framework

Figure 6.1 — Indicative timeline for developing the Spatial Framework

Page 67 "



6. Our commitment to engaging communities

Have your say

6.7 The development of the Spatial Framework will be informed through, and will benefit
from, consultation with who live, work and have an interest in the Arc. In this consultation
we are inviting the public to help us create a vision for the area to 2050 and help set the
scope of the Sustainability Appraisal. This consultation is open to everyone and all views
are important to us. There will be further opportunities for people to have their say. This is
the first of three planned consultations on the Spatial Framework. If you would like to be
kept updated on the progress of the Spatial Framework and other government-led Arc
proposals, you can sign up to the mailing list at the GOV.UK policy webpage.

What do you think?

1. How can government engage the public better?
[Communication materials/ Social listening/ Focus groups/ 1-1 interviews and experiments/
Ethnography/ Citizen assemblies and citizen juries/ Other types of engagement]

2. Before this consultation, | was familiar with the area known as the Oxford-
Cambridge Arc.

[Yes/ NOJ

3. Do you have anything else to add on engaging communities?

Page 68 43


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/oxford-cambridge-arc/oxford-cambridge-arc

7. Our commitment to data, evidence and digital tools

/.

Our commitment to data,
evidence and digital tools

Introduction

7.1

7.2

7.3

We are building an evidence base so that the Spatial Framework can be based on
the latest and most reliable data and analysis available. This will help us to support
sustainable growth, as it will allow us to fully understand and assess the possible
environmental, economic and social impact of different policies and spatial options. This
will not happen overnight — we will need to work to develop our evidence base over the
course of creating the Spatial Framework. We also want to leave a positive legacy of data
and evidence for future planning and policy-making in the Arc.

We want everyone to have access to our evidence base, and we will use the latest
digital technology to make this possible. We believe that this will give us an
opportunity to create a lasting resource for communities, local authorities and businesses
in the Arc, so that everyone has greater access to better data and evidence. There are 18
local planning authorities, eight transport planning authorities, four Local Enterprise
Partnerships and one sub-national transport body in the Arc — this is a rare opportunity to
improve the way data and evidence is collected and used within and between public and
private sector organisations over a wide area.

We want your views on our approach to using evidence and data to support the
development of the Spatial Framework, so that we can create digital tools that can
genuinely support better access and use of data and evidence across the Arc and
government’s Arc-related work, as we set out in the ‘Planning for the Future’ consultation.

Our commitment

7.4

We are committed to creating a robust evidence base that is easily accessible because:

e the planning system could make better use of interactive digital services
and tools. We need to go further to realise our ambition for use of data and
digital tools in the Arc. By making processes more reliant on data rather than
documents, engagement with planning could become easier;

e at the moment, evidence can vary and be difficult to access, limiting its use
and the impact that it can have; and

e the best way to build good services is to understand the needs of everyone
that will have access to them. We will start small with samples and improve
them over the course of developing the Spatial Framework, so that we can leave
a positive legacy for communities and stakeholders in the Arc.

Page 69 4



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/958420/MHCLG-Planning-Consultation.pdf

7. Our commitment to data, evidence and digital tools

7.5

7.6

Our approach will be based on the following principles:

open access - we will promote open data, open standards and open source
models, while remaining consistent with the principles of data security;

quality - we will underpin evidence with high-quality, verifiable and reliable data,
use the best analytical methods and ensure high quality of presentation of
outputs;

transparency - we will use transparent approaches to handling data and
evidence to make the options, benefits and impacts of the Framework more
clear;

accessibility - we will ensure access to evidence and data that supports the
Framework and promote user-friendly data visualisations available to all;

collaboration - we will work across central government departments, local
government and organisations to break down barriers and align work in the Arc;
and

add value - we will start with end-users’ needs by making sure that data can be
easily found, interpreted, and reused.

Our commitment is to:

develop a reliable and complete evidence base to support the Framework
and provide the basis for strategic cross-boundary planning in the Arc;

use the latest digital technology and data analytics to develop the evidence
base for the Spatial Framework. We will undertake reliable spatial analysis,
option testing and assessment of impacts to inform policy set by the Framework;

support development of an open source, digital platform for data and
evidence to support collaboration between government, businesses, local
councils and communities in decision-making. We will work with local
partners to create an accessible digital platform for data used to support the
Spatial Framework, and easy-to-use tools so that people — including the public
and businesses — can engage meaningfully in the process; and

create a visual, interactive and map-based Spatial Framework for public
engagement. The Framework will be carefully designed with the user in mind
and to ensure that it is available in different formats, on different devices, and
can be accessed and understood by all.

Page 70

45




7. Our commitment to data, evidence and digital tools

Evidence base

1.7

7.8

The Framework will be based on a reliable, consistent and complete evidence base,
which we will make publicly available through a digital platform that we intend to create.
This will include a summary of responses (anonymised where appropriate as to
individuals) to at least the three planned consultations, including this one. This is going to
be a process that develops over the course of the Spatial Framework to ensure that our
evidence base is appropriate to inform policy-making.

We recognise and appreciate the significant work that has already been undertaken by
our local partners in the Arc to develop an evidence base to support planning. In order to
avoid duplication, we will review the evidence base that has been developed to date and
seek to build on and use the most relevant, appropriate, up-to-date and reliable existing
analysis, which could be used to inform how the Spatial Framework is developed and
delivered.

What do you think?

1. To what extent do you agree with our proposed approach on data and evidence?
[Strongly disagree/ Disagree/ Neutral/ Agree/ Strongly agree]

2. Do you have anything else to add on data, evidence and digital tools?

Page 71 46




8. How we will monitor and deliver the Framework

8.

How we will monitor and deliver
the Framework

Delivery and funding

Introduction

8.1 The Spatial Framework will set the direction for sustainable growth in the Oxford-
Cambridge Arc to 2050.

8.2 This is why we will work across government and with local partners to create plans
to deliver the identified investment needs set out in the Spatial Framework. To do
this we will develop:

e a Spatial Framework delivery plan that will identify priority investments needed
for sustainable economic growth in the Oxford-Cambridge Arc;

e an infrastructure delivery plan that will set out the Arc's long-term
infrastructure needs, phasing and costs; and

e strategies and action plans across the Spatial Framework's thematic
pillars, which will focus on practical measures government, local authorities and
partners can take to improve delivery in the Arc.

8.3 We want your views on how the Spatial Framework can be delivered. In this section,

we set out:

e our approach to delivery and funding; and

e questions on how you think we should deliver the Spatial Framework.

Our approach to delivery and funding

8.4

The Spatial Framework will be supported by evidence across our four thematic pillars to
achieve sustainable long-term growth for the Arc. The Spatial Framework will enable a
coordinated cross-boundary approach to support its delivery and investment across the
Arc.

Page 72 47




8. How we will monitor and deliver the Framework

8.5

Therefore, we intend to:

assess the viability of any proposed policies in the Spatial Framework, to make
sure that these costs do not risk its deliverability;

identify when and where the demand for infrastructure arises within the Arc,
based on future options for sustainable growth;

identify priority schemes at a strategic level across transport, utilities, social
infrastructure, environment and housing in the Arc beyond those already
committed to, which are required to support the Arc's long-term ambition for
economic growth;

propose potential investment opportunities, with indicative timescales and an
understanding of how these will interact with already committed schemes and
phasing;

identify potential delivery mechanisms for the investment priorities within the
Spatial Framework. For example, the government is considering setting up a
new Arc Growth Body?’. This provides an opportunity to also consider the role
the body could potentially play in driving forward the Arc's investment priorities
identified in the Spatial Framework; and

work with stakeholders to understand how the existing regulatory framework can
accommodate the Spatial Framework's ambition for energy and water
infrastructure, which currently sits outside the remit of government spending.

What do you think?

1. To what extent do you agree with our proposed approach on delivery and
funding?
[Strongly disagree/ Disagree/ Neutral/ Agree/ Strongly agree]

2. Do you have anything else to add on delivery and funding?

Monitoring and evaluation

Introduction

8.6

8.7

We want the Spatial Framework to support lasting improvements to places across
the Oxford-Cambridge Arc.

We will develop a strong evidence base, and assess the cumulative effects of
policies, to help deliver better outcomes for communities and places across the
Arc. We know we will see significant economic, environmental and social change in the

Page 73 48




8. How we will monitor and deliver the Framework

8.8

8.9

area over the coming years and decades. As those changes take place, they will have
different impacts on different communities and places. We also know that policies may
not have the impact we had originally intended.

As we try to drive more sustainable outcomes and support economic growth in the
Arc, it is vital that we know what impact our policies are having.

We will make sure that policies in the Spatial Framework are fit for purpose by
monitoring and evaluating their impacts. We will make sure we make better use of
data and digital tools to do this, and to do it in an open and transparent way so that
communities, local authorities and employers can see what is happening. We also want
this approach to help local planning authorities to deliver their Local Plans, and to support
investment and growth. In this section, we want your views on how we can do this most
effectively.

Our commitment to monitoring and evaluation

8.10 We believe that:

e setting up a robust monitoring and evaluation framework is important for
assessing the effectiveness of the Spatial Framework and its policies, and the
significant effects identified through the Sustainability Appraisal;

e monitoring and evaluation are crucial to keeping the Spatial Framework under
review, identifying areas where objectives aren’t being met, unforeseen adverse
effects and enabling changes to policy, development management and/or other
appropriate action where required; and

e the monitoring and evaluation process should be an effective way to gather
evidence for future policy related to the Spatial Framework, support development
management decisions and help stakeholders understand the purpose of
planning in the area.

Page 74 49



8. How we will monitor and deliver the Framework

8.11 Our commitment is to ensure arrangements are in place to:

e publish regular monitoring and evaluation reports to provide a clear picture of the
Spatial Framework’s effectiveness. We will look to:

o set up a performance framework to monitor and evaluate progress towards
the delivery of the Spatial Framework’s policies;

o monitor and evaluate the environmental, social and economic impacts of the
Spatial Framework’s policies such as significant effects and unforeseen
adverse effects identified through the Sustainability Appraisal, planning
performance, and infrastructure delivery; and

o create an interactive and accessible dashboard on the digital platform to
monitor policy effectiveness against the Framework’s objectives.

What do you think?

1. To what extent do you agree with our proposed approach on monitoring and
evaluation?
[Strongly disagree/ Disagree/ Neutral/ Agree/ Strongly agree]

2. Do you have anything else to add on monitoring and evaluation?

Page 75 -




Page 76



Appendix

Appendix B
Proposed NNC response to consultation questions
Draft proposed response from planning policy for further feedback

Section 1. Introduction: Creating a Vision for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc

What do you think?

What is your positive vision for the Arc in the future?

1. What place could it be? What words come to mind?

+ Sustainable

+ Sense of community

« Equal/ inclusive

+ Progressive

+ Collaborates for better outcomes
+« NMore life opportunities
+« Better environment

« Eco-friendly

« Connected

+ Better transport

» Better infrastructure
 Thriving economy

+« Better place

» Better homes

+ More available homes
+ More affordable homes
s Other — please specify

Response:

2. If you can, we would love you to tell us more about your vision for the Arc to
2050.

Response:

1. The vision for the Arc should be that all areas and the communities within it,
benefit from being within it, with no area left behind. Previous discussions about what
North Northamptonshire wants to achieve from being within the Arc were in relation
to the delivery of the vision and outcomes set out in the adopted Joint Core Strategy
(JCS), including North Northamptonshire in 2031 being:

o A showpiece for modern green living and well-managed sustainable
development;

Page 77



o A strong network of settlements within an enhanced green framework of
living, working countryside

o Outward looking, taking advantage of its excellent transport connectivity to be
a nationally important growth area and focus for inward investment

o More self-reliant...investment in infrastructure and jobs will have led to less
need to travel and will have shaped places in a way that meets the needs and
aspirations of local people

o An exemplar for construction-based innovation and the delivery of low carbon
growth

2. North Northamptonshire has delivered a nationally significant scale of growth. We
are determined to play our part in delivering the growth ambitions for the Arc in a
way that benefits local communities, but we recognise that North Northamptonshire
is peripheral to the main growth opportunities presented by investment in East-West
connectivity, and that our main towns are secondary economic centres and the GVA
is amongst the lowest in the Arc. New homes will need to be supported by significant
investment in infrastructure, services and facilities, and growth in high quality jobs.
There must also be a commitment to protecting, restoring and enhancing the
environment across the Arc. The vision and ASF should facilitate this.

3. Central to the economic vision and overall growth strategy for North
Northamptonshire is an ambitious agenda for place shaping, to ensure that
development is genuinely sustainable and inclusive by creating places where people
want to live, work and do business. New development will be guided by high quality
design principles to create exemplar places that communities can feel proud of. This
should underpin and be delivered by the ASF.

3. How do you feel overall about the future of the Arc? What are your hopes and
fears?

Response:

4. North Northamptonshire Council (NNC) recognises the opportunities provided by
the Arc. As set out on page 5 of the North Northamptonshire Economic Prospectus,
drawing on our success as a proven growth location, strong appetite exists within
North Northamptonshire to continue to accommodate significant levels of sustainable
growth and development in the future. Support from the government will be
necessary to realise and deliver these ambitions.

5. NNC is actively involved in the development of the ASF at officer and member
levels to maximise the opportunities and benefits for North Northamptonshire. It will
be essential that the benefits of the Arc reach all areas within it.

6. The policy aspirations set out within the consultation document are welcomed.
Given the lack of spatial detail in the current consultation, including on elements
such as housing and employment growth, the specific implications or expectations
for North Northamptonshire are unclear. It is noted that the document refers to the
ASF identifying the most sustainable locations for new homes, including identifying

Page 78



Opportunity Areas (para 5.6) and seeking to set policies to enable housing needs
being met in full at para 5.7 but no further detail is provided on the implications of
this. NNC and its residents would want to ensure that benefits for North
Northamptonshire are maximised, when considering its contribution to meeting the
growth objectives of the Arc.

7. It is critical that the Vision and policies within the ASF are delivered through
sufficient investment in all areas and local authorities are not under pressure to
deliver significant levels of housing without the necessary infrastructure and
investment. We recognise that North Northamptonshire is at the geographic
periphery of the Arc, relatively remote from the growth opportunities presented by
investment in East-West Connectivity, and this remains a concern. Investment in
key infrastructure, including an enhanced environment, will be critical to realising
North Northamptonshire’s contribution to the Arc by unlocking key sites for
development and facilitating conditions for growth.

We are preparing the OxCam Arc Spatial Framework to make the most of the
area’s unique potential for economic growth to 2050 and beyond.

4. What do you think are the most important things that it needs to do, as a strategic
plan, to achieve this? Work at an Arc-wide level to tackle shared issues/
opportunities on:

s Environment

s Economy

s Connectivity and growth

s Place-making

« Supporting monitoring and delivery

Response:

8. Protecting and enhancing the quality of the natural environment, and high
standards of place-making should be given equally billing with growth in the
economy and connectivity, something that should be fundamental in shaping the
Arc’s strategic plan.

5. If there is anything you would like to add, we would love you to tell us.

Response:

9. The proposed scope of the ASF covers the expected range of issues and the
status of the document as national policy will provide greater certainty for the
preparation of Local Plans (including the NNSP) that will need to take account of it.
However, as discussed above, it is unclear whether the ASF will identify the quantum
of housing and economic development in the Arc and the potential distribution of
this. The document makes no mention of housing targets, saying only that the
framework will seek to set policies to enable housing needs to be met in full. Further

Page 79



clarity on this will be important as the ASF is developed and the lack of spatial detail
makes understanding and commenting on potential implications difficult.

10. The proposed status of the ASF as national policy is supported in principle. This
is consistent with the responses of the North Northamptonshire Joint Planning
Committee and North Northamptonshire Shadow Executive to the Planning for the
Future White Paper, which set out that focused, democratically produced
regional/sub-regional policy guidance could help simplify Local Plans. The responses
also expressed a preference for Local Housing Need (LHN) to be determined taking
account of the wider context provided by the emerging Spatial Framework for the
Oxford-Cambridge Arc, where it can be considered alongside employment provision,
strategic infrastructure, and the varying constraints, opportunities, and ambitions
across the Arc.

Section 2. The Environment
What do you think?

Thinking about your vision for the future of the area, how important is it that the
Spatial Framework focuses on:

Green spaces, hature, and biodiversity

1. Making sure the natural environment is protected, restored, and improved. For
example, improving new and existing green spaces.
[Not important/ Less important’ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

2. Making sure the most is made of the natural environment and that all people can
have access to it. For example, making improvements to woodlands, wetland, green
space and water and making sure people can visit them if they want to.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:
3. Making sure new growth leaves the environment in a better state than before. For
example, keeping land in its natural state, and making it more wild, where

appropriate.
[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

4. Anything else to add about your vision for green spaces, nature, and
biodiversity?

Page 80



Response:

11. The environment must be central to all activity within the Arc. The ASF
represents a real opportunity to ensure this by taking a coordinated approach. The
Arc should aim to be an exemplar for sustainable living. NNC has endorsed the
shared regional principles for protecting, restoring and enhancing the environment in
the Arc. The council also supports the development of an Arc Environment Strategy
to provide further guidance on how these principles can be delivered.

12. Given the ambitious and challenging nature of the principles they will require the
collective effort of all partners in the Arc if they are to be delivered. They seek to
address some of the biggest challenges of our time including achieving net zero
carbon, climate resilience, biodiversity net gain, environmental net gain and ensuring
renewable natural capital remains available for future generations. These ambitions
will not come without significant challenges. There will be practical delivery
challenges particularly to ensure development remains viable in all areas across the
Arc.

13. North Northamptonshire is well placed to be an exemplar of sustainable living
and working. The North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy already includes a
vision to be ‘a showpiece for modern green living and well managed sustainable
development: a resilient area where local choices have increased the ability to adapt
to the impacts of climate change and to global economic changes.’ There are
considerable opportunities to engage with the desire to double nature and increase
biodiversity gain through projects including within the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits
SPA and the Rockingham Forest. It is hoped that the Arc will become a place where
significant funding and support will become available to test and develop projects to
deliver these environmental benefits and North Northamptonshire will be well placed
to deliver these opportunities.

14. The concept of natural capital lies at the heart of North Northamptonshire’s
growth strategy which recognises the importance of the natural environment and the
opportunities it provides to enhance economic prosperity, productivity and inward
investment.

15. The approach to Sustainability Appraisal/ Habitats Regulation’s Assessment
(HRA) is welcomed. It is important to ensure that sustainability is fully embedded in
the ASF. NNC will be particularly interested in the development of the HRA, as the
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA could potentially have a significant impact on
development in the area. The HRA for the ASF is also likely to influence the HRAs of
local plans. The impact on SPAs needs to be strategically addressed. There will be
potentially significant adverse impacts from increased disturbance to waterbirds from
human activity, loss of supporting habitat and changes in ecological condition. The
Arc should support regional evidence gathering and the ASF should look to
landscape scale solutions. Natural England needs to be appropriately resourced to
support local planning authorities and plan making. Funding to support the
necessary surveys to ensure an up-to-date robust evidence base will also be
necessary. The role of Nature Recovery Strategies will be important to inform
priorities and these need to be delivered alongside the ASF. Aspiration for the

Page 81



environment beyond mandatory minimum is important, but must be realistic,
deliverable and not result in development becoming unviable.

16. Whilst we welcome the statement regarding the natural environment being
accessible to all, controlling public access to sensitive sites may be required and
there is a role for creating alternative natural greenspaces. A balance between the
needs of people and the environment will be necessary in some locations.

17. The pandemic has highlighted the importance of access to local greenspace.
The provision of good quality greenspace for people and nature must be a
fundamental component of good place making

Climate change resilience and net zero

5. Making sure new development helps to achieve net zero carbon at an Arc level
towards national net zero targets. For example, through good design, sustainable
travel choices, renewable energy and trapping carbon.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

6. Making sure that new development can respond to the current and future effects
of climate change. For example, through new carbon emissions, water use, waste
disposal and renewable energy targets.

[Not important/ Less important’ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]
Response:

7. Anything else to add about your vision for climate change and/ or the contribution
to net zero?

Response:

18. North Northamptonshire Council declared a climate and environment emergency
at its Full Council meeting on 28t July 2021.

19. Plan making whilst important cannot achieve net zero without significant changes
in national policy relating to all aspects of the environment and economy. Although it
is imperative that future development is net zero, national and local ambitions cannot
be achieved without retrofitting of the existing stock of development, and
programmes to address this will also be required.

20. Measures within the ASF which focus on reducing reliance on the private car and
work towards decarbonisation, whilst also taking into account needs of the user,
would be supported given that the key emitter of CO2 in North Northamptonshire is
transport. Recognition of rural connectivity is needed and the difficulties that people,
particularly those on low incomes, living in these areas can face in terms of
accessibility and/or moving away from the private car due to poor alternative
sustainable transport options. Exploring options for centres of mobility/mobility hubs

Page 82



in these areas to serve local communities as well as recognising the importance of
investing in digital infrastructure to help reduce the need to travel would be
supported.

21. Furthermore, moves to support modal shift through greater (electric) rail-based
connectivity between centres, both within and outside the arc, would be welcomed.
The work being undertaken by England’s Economic Heartland on this is referred to
elsewhere in this response and should be reflected in the ASF and recognition of this
in para 4.5 is welcomed.

22. Decarbonisation of the road fleet and its electrification is an area that needs to be
addressed before the banning of new petrol, diesel and hybrid cars in 2035.

23. Given the key role that decentralised and renewable heat and energy will play in
future, the Arc provides a great opportunity to identify and coordinate areas of future
network stress as well as opportunities to implement innovative solutions (for
example district heat networks). Ensuring sufficient capacity exists in locations which
want to deliver strategic scale interventions is imperative if the Arc is to deliver on its
net zero ambitions and deliver development which is truly sustainable.

24. It is considered that the document could be more specific as to the Arc’s Net
Zero ambitions as it seems the key reference at para 4.5 seems non-committal.
North Northamptonshire, although having recently declared a climate and
environment emergency, has not set a date it seeks the area to reach net zero by.
Having a clear target set through the Arc that has been tested through the ASF,
including in relation to viability would help provide local clarity in this respect and
provide a basis for local plan-making, and associated activities, to work towards.

Air quality and waste

8. Making sure new development helps to improve air quality within the Arc. For
example, through high quality design, low emission zones and sustainable
transport.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

9. Taking a combined approach to air quality across the Arc. For example, through
being careful about where each land uses should go, supporting journeys via public
transport and active travel and enhancing green spaces and routes across the area.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

10. Making better use of resources and managing waste. For example, promoting
the re-use of materials, and protecting and improving soil quality and minerals.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

Page 83



11. Anything else to add about your vision for air quality and waste?

Response:

25. A hierarchy of air quality mitigation is required (preventing/avoiding, reduction
and minimisation and offsetting). A combination of local, regional and national
mechanisms will be required.

26. The Arc would appear to be an ideal candidate to seek to promote and
encourage the circular economy and thus helping to minimise waste and promote
sustainable development.

27. Linked to the above responses, we note that the electrification of transport will
have a key role in improving air quality albeit this will need be augmented by action
in other areas. In this respect investment in natural capital can play a key role in
improving air quality and efforts to deliver projects at the strategic and local scale are
supported in this respect.

28. An Arc wide approach to mineral extraction and restoration would be helpful to
ensure not only a sufficient supply of aggregates for construction, but also to ensure
a coordinated approach to environmental net gain through restoration of such sites.

Water

12. Promoting a combined approach to managing water across the Arc,

through protecting water resources, improving water quality and reducing the risk
of flooding. For example, treating wastewater, improving water storage, and reusing
surface runoff.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

13. Making sure new development reduces existing flood risk and is resilient to
future flooding. For example, through tree planting and multifunctional
sustainable drainage.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

14. Improving water availability and cutting the risk of drought. For example,
through new sustainable water resources and infrastructure, and measures which
reduce water use.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

Page 84




15. Anything else to add about your vision for water?

Response:

29. A long-term water cycle approach is required underpinned by collaborative
working between agencies and delivery partners.

30. North Northamptonshire has been subject to serious flooding in recent years,
including in areas which have not been previously known to flood, with climate
change and extreme levels of rainfall playing a role in this. It is imperative that the
Arc Vision, in the context of growing existing and new areas, places great emphasis
on safeguarding communities, be it through hard or soft infrastructure or other
approaches.

31. Despite the above, North Northamptonshire is in the driest region of the UK with
low rainfall (71% of the UK average) and high evaporation losses. Water resources
are already under pressure and the region is designated as an area of serious water
stress by the Environment Agency where opportunities for new water resources are
limited. This is reflected in policy 9 of the North Northamptonshire Joint Core
Strategy. New development opportunities/areas need to be mindful of this fact, with
the potential for Arc scale infrastructure interventions flagged as potentially
necessary in future if the area is to realise its true potential.

Section 3. The Economy

What do you think?

Thinking about your vision for the future of the area, how important is it that the
Spatial Framework focuses on:

Education and training

1. Making sure the Arc keeps growing as a place of educational excellence,
partnership and research. For example, through growth which helps existing
universities and colleges.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

2. Making sure the economic benefits of growth are felt by all communities within
the Arc. For example, through putting new education and training facilities in places
where more people can easily get to go to them.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

Page 85



3. Anything else to add about your vision for education and training?

Response:

32. Education and training are the bedrock of an inclusive society. It is imperative
that if the Arc is to realise its ambitions that all parts of society have the opportunity
to play its role. Central to this is the ability of people to access education and
training, either in person or remotely, with the necessary infrastructure (including
superfast broadband) required to do so.

33. North Northamptonshire has consistently been one of the fastest growing areas
in the UK yet despite this it has no Higher Education facility for local residents to
access, the result being a net loss of people (particularly younger residents) from the
area, and who often do not return. Given the continued growth aspirations of North
Northamptonshire, it is imperative the Arc Vision recognises this local deficit and
prioritises rectifying this in order to help the area level up and increase social mobility
for its residents, to the benefit of the wider Arc area. Opportunities exist to deliver
this in partnership with existing universities and colleges and to help deliver
education in areas of expertise (for example, green technologies and motorsports).

Jobs and businesses

4. Making sure that the Arc keeps growing as a place for business, science and
technology, and innovation. For example, through putting these types of hew
workspaces in places where they can make the most of cross-sector collaboration.
[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

5. Making sure that existing industries keep growing within the Arc. For example,
through putting industries in the best places to suit their needs.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]
Response:
6. Making sure the Arc builds upon and grows its skills, expertise and capabilities.

For example, through making sure people can get around easily to bring the right
people to the right job locations.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

10

Page 86



7. Making sure that the right types of buildings are provided in the Arc so that
businesses can keep growing as well as supporting the green economy. For
example, through building new flexible and adaptable workspaces meeting the
needs of a range of different businesses of different sizes.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

8. Anything else to add about your vision for jobs and businesses?

Response:

34. North Northamptonshire has a strong economy that is underpinned by both
existing established sectors and innovative breakthrough sectors which offer high
growth potential. The area’s strengths in these sectors are supported by a thriving
start-up culture and the presence of major global brands. Existing sector strengths
identified in the North Northamptonshire Economic Prospectus include Logistics,
Manufacturing, Retail and leisure and Visitor economy.

35. The Economic Prospectus sets out that the key opportunity for North
Northamptonshire going forward is to align new employment generation with sector
opportunities identified across the wider Oxford-Cambridge Arc economic area, and
in doing so, support higher value business growth and activity. This includes key
growth sectors underpinning the South East Midlands Local Industrial Strategy such
as those related to digital technologies and artificial intelligence, logistics, clean
growth, precision engineering and autonomous vehicles, as well as life sciences
specialisms which are starting to be realised across the wider Arc.

36. Despite being one of the fastest growing areas in the UK in recent years in terms
of housing delivery, and with tens of thousands more houses in the pipeline, North
Northamptonshire has struggled to deliver higher value jobs and has lagged behind
other areas of the Arc in this respect with our GVA amongst the lowest in the Arc.
The economic base of some parts of North Northamptonshire has been
characterised by low skilled and low paid activities, with wages not keeping up with
the cost of housing to create issues of local affordability, despite being one of the
most affordable parts of the Arc.

37. If the Arc is to achieve its full potential, areas on its geographic periphery, such
as North Northamptonshire, must be prioritised for investment including Education
(see previous answer) and interventions to support economic growth. Doing so
would make this part of the Arc even more attractive to prospective investors, be it
from a homebuying or business/industrial perspective and help the area to level up
to the benefit of the wider Arc.

38. Connectivity and the ability of residents to access employment opportunities will
be key for the Arc and being at the forefront of systematic changes will be critical in
future. Improved rail connectivity can play a role in this, as will improved access to,
and speed of, digital infrastructure, be it in terms of superfast broadband and the
opportunities this brings, to accessing on demand clean modes of transport.

11

Page 87



Section 4. Connectivity and Infrastructure

What do you think?

Thinking about the future of the area, how important is it that the Spatial
Framework focuses on:

Infrastructure

1. Making sure planning takes a combined approach to new development by
providing the infrastructure and services required at the right time to support
growth. For example, by planning for the need for utilities (e.g. water, energy, waste)
and community infrastructure (e.g. schools, hospitals, GP surgeries).

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

2. Making sure new development makes the most of existing resources. For
example, through making sure that materials are reused, renewable energy supplies
are used, and waste is properly planned for.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

3. Making sure that digital infrastructure is put in at the same time as other
development takes place. For example, speeding up the fitting of high-speed
broadband to support home-based work and help new ways of learning.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

4. Anything else to add about your vision for infrastructure?

Response:

39. Development needs to be accompanied by all of the necessary infrastructure to
support it, and it must be of high quality, sustainable design, meeting local needs
and supporting the local economy, alongside maximising environmental net gain and
mitigation to climate change. It is also critical that this is delivered alongside
development in a timely manner to the benefit of existing and new residents (the
“social” dimension of sustainable development).

40. In parts of North Northamptonshire, particularly areas with lower land values,
viability impacts on the delivery of infrastructure and affordable housing. The North
Northamptonshire Investment Framework (June 2019) identified that the highest
priority infrastructure projects had a funding shortfall of just under £316m, based on
a ‘point-in-time’ snapshot as at June 2019. This shortfall represents the tip of the
iceberg for North Northamptonshire. Investment in key infrastructure will be critical to

12

Page 88



realise North Northamptonshire’s contribution to the Arc. In this respect initiatives to
aid the delivery of new infrastructure would be welcomed.

New development

5. Making sure growth within the Arc is placed around areas with better transport
links. For example, through having more development around stations and bus
routes, supported by cycling and walking tracks.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

6. Making sure new development cuts down the need to travel around the local area.
For example, through providing safe and easy walking and cycling routes to town
centres, shops and schools.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

7. Making sure new developments reduce existing and future infrastructure demand
and resources used. For example, making sure that designs leave enough space for
existing and future measures which reduce energy and water use, and cut down on
waste.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

8. Making sure sustainable transport principles are included in the design of new
developments. For example, by designing new developments in a way that enables
people to walk or cycle all or part of their journeys.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

9. Anything else to add about new developments in the context of connectivity and
infrastructure?

Response:

41. North Northamptonshire is already making an important contribution to achieving
wider growth objectives associated with its strategic location within a nationally

13

Page 89



important growth area. Connectivity and investment in infrastructure are key to
delivery of sustainable growth.

42. The North Northamptonshire Joint Planning Committee was consistently
supportive of any measures that seek the enhancement of sustainable transport and
encourage walking and cycling. However, consideration must be given to
developments in more rural areas where alternative sustainable modes of transport
away from the private car are more limited in terms of availability, practicality and
cost. Suitable measures to overcome these barriers need to be addressed.

43. In terms of distance, the main towns of North Northamptonshire are located
relatively closely to one another, and this presents opportunities to deliver modal
shift for travel between these locations. Green Infrastructure and new cycle routes
provide a particular opportunity to facilitate modal shift in a location where travel to
work area is relatively contained (people travel small distances) but car use
dominates. The relatively rural nature of North Northamptonshire as found between
settlements provides the opportunity to deliver net zero transport links to the benefit
of residents and could provide an exemplar for the wider Arc area.

44. Changing working habits such as increased remote working are likely to lead to
reduced demand for journeys to work, particularly as result of homeworking
becoming the norm for many people during the Covid-19 pandemic. The impacts of
this will need to be considered in the development of the ASF.

45. There is a need to improve access to digital connectivity (such as in rural areas),
by, for example, securing efficient broadband provision for all. This is now even more
critical given the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic and the shift for many people and
businesses to home working. Addressing this matter is vital in ensuring the
continuation of business growth and improving access for residents to services and
opportunities in ways that reduce the need to travel, which in turn also contribute to
the decarbonisation of the transport network.

Getting around

10. Creating better transport connections across the Arc and making sure they are
provided in a way which supports sustainable new growth. For example, by
planning for public transport and physical transport infrastructure requirements.
[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

11. Making sure there are more opportunities for active travel such as walking and
cycling across the Arc. For example, wider pavements, segregated cycle lanes,
improved network of cycle lanes, and better pedestrian crossings.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

14

Page 90



12. Making sure that there is the right form of public transport in the right areas
across the Arc and can be used by all travellers, including people with
any particular needs.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

13. Cutting down on the impact of cars and other private vehicles within the Arc. For
example, by supporting more sustainable forms of private travel like cycling.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

14. Anything else to add about your vision of getting around?

Response:

46. North Northamptonshire has previously raised concerns through the North
Northamptonshire Joint Planning Committee in respect of both the Arc and to
England's Economic Heartland that as the area is on the geographic periphery of the
Arc/ England’s Economic Heartland (EEH) area it was at risk of being marginalised
in terms of its role within it. We welcome the work being undertaken by EEH in
relation to this, including the development of connectivity studies and welcome
recognition in para 4.5 that the ASF will set strategic policies which build on the EEH
transport strategy. It is important that key strategic routes that have previously been
identified as requiring more recognition and potential improvement such as the A43,
A45, Al14, A6 and A509, as well as potential new rail opportunities are encompassed
in this work. We welcome the identification of a north East-West Arc in the EEH
transport strategy and the opportunity this potentially brings to enhance the
Nuneaton to Felixstowe Line. In addition, we are fully supportive of opening the line
between Corby and Peterborough in the short to medium term. These improvements
will improve access for residents of North Northamptonshire to the greater East-West
rail corridor.

47. Long-term strategic planning is vital to ensure connectivity is embedded into
plan-making at all scales. The full environmental impact of transport schemes needs
to be addressed. The pricing of ticketing on public transport (particularly trains)
needs to be addressed as it is a disincentive to use (for example it costs more to
travel to London from North Northamptonshire using East Midlands Railway than
comparable journeys using adjacent rail franchises). Finding space for active travel,
particularly segregated areas, in existing built-up areas can be challenging. Greater
funding for walking and cycling schemes will be required to provide new attractive
facilities to encourage use. Alternatives to fossil fuel use in vehicles will play a key
role. A strategy for freight and distribution is required and the work being undertaken
by EEH in this regard is noted.

15

Page 91



Section 5. Place-making

What do you think?

Thinking about the future of the area, how important is it that the Spatial
Framework focuses on:

Location of growth

1. Making sure new developments are built in the most sustainable locations, for the
environment, the economy and communities. For example, by developing
brownfield redevelopment and making sure they have good access to town centres,
shops and schools.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

2. Anything else to add about your vision for location of growth?

Response:

48. Growth should be located at the most sustainable locations and facilitate the
conditions for settlements to be more sustainable. Environmental constraints and
opportunities must be fully considered in determining the locations of growth. The
Joint Core Strategy and Part 2 Local Plans set out the vision for the location of
growth in North Northamptonshire and given the emphasis on strategic scale growth,
these locations will play their part in terms of delivery over the long term.

49. Appropriate brownfield development should be encouraged, whilst recognising
that some brownfield sites represent important habitats. The Part 1 Brownfield
Register* for North Northamptonshire details a number of potential sites which, if
redeveloped, could regenerate and enhance the vitality of settlements across the
area and assist in the delivery of, for example, new affordable housing, custom and
self-build opportunities, as well as in the viability of local services and facilities (*this
will be augmented by a local Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment
which is due to commence this year). The main reason that many of these sites have
not been delivered to date centres around their viability, this needs to be addressed.

Homes in your area

16

Page 92



3. Ensuring the right types of housing are delivered in the right locations to meet the
needs of both renters and buyers. For example, family houses, first-time buyers,
specialist housing, student accommodation and opportunities for people to build
their own homes.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

4. Increasing the amount and availability of affordable homes within the Arc.
[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

5. Anything else to add about your vision for homes in your area?

Response:

50. Central to the economic vision and overall growth strategy for North
Northamptonshire is an ambitious agenda for place shaping, to ensure that
development is genuinely sustainable and inclusive by creating places where people
want to live, work and do business. New development will be guided by high quality
design principles to create exemplar places that communities can feel proud of. This
should underpin and be delivered by the ASF.

51. Residents share similar concerns to the Council regarding the need for high-
guality development that meets local needs and is supported by the necessary
infrastructure investment.

52. Development needs to incorporate an appropriate amount of affordable housing
to meet locally identified needs, be supported by all of the necessary infrastructure,
and be of high-quality, sustainable design. In parts of North Northamptonshire,
particularly areas with lower land values, viability constraints often undermine these
objectives, for example resulting in less than 10% affordable housing in large Garden
Community developments.

53. While house prices in North Northamptonshire are relatively affordable in a wider
context, median household incomes are also relatively low and have not kept pace
with house price inflation. Alongside access to bespoke affordable housing products,
opportunities for higher paid employment (as sought by the JCS focus on higher
skilled jobs) will be the most effective ways of improving the affordability of market
housing for the existing community.

54. New housing which meets the needs of older persons is also a concern locally,
particularly for affordable needs, and it is imperative that a greater supply of this is
provided given what is known about future demographics, particularly across North
Northamptonshire.

55. Assistance with the delivery of brownfield sites could provide ability to unlock
constrained sites and deliver more housing, which in many instances is located in

17

Page 93



sustainable locations, to the benefit of existing communities and initiatives to
prioritise this would be supported.

Design of new developments and streets

6. Making sure a coordinated approach is taken to the design and delivery of new
developments to ensure they are supported by new and existing infrastructure.
[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

7. Making sure the environment and sustainability is at the heart of new
developments. For example, by improving the built and natural environment, making
sure development complements surrounding areas, and is supported by the right
level of infrastructure.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

8. Making sure there is the right mix of uses in new developments to help make high
quality and thriving new places.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

9. Making sure new developments help support healthy lifestyles for existing and
future communities. For example, through walking and cycling, high quality green
spaces, and accessible streets.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

10. Making sure new developments promote resilience to climate change. For
example, through green roofs, managing surface water, tree planting, storing
rainwater and new green spaces.

[Not important/ Less important/ Neutral/ Important/ Very Important]

Response:

11. Anything else to add about your vision for the design of new developments and
streets?

Response:

Page 94

18



56. It is welcomed that the document recognises that the essential ingredients of
successful placemaking, and that design quality is not simply about housing delivery.
Great places go beyond aesthetics and visual appearance, encompassing other
important principles such as social opportunity/integration, community,
health/wellbeing, and local economy. North Northamptonshire supports Building for a
Healthy Life (BHL) 2020 as a valuable tool in assessing and shaping development
proposals.

57. Access to a network of high-quality open spaces and opportunities for sport and
physical activity is important for the health and well-being of communities and can
deliver wider benefits for nature and efforts to address climate change. Access to
this type of space is considered particularly important in light of the Covid-19
pandemic and supports the delivery of high-quality sustainable design (as
highlighted in the North Northamptonshire Joint Planning Committee and North
Northamptonshire Shadow Executive responses to the Planning White Paper).

58. An important consideration in terms of future climate change is leaving space
within development to accommodate the impacts of this — for example, having an
area to accommodate future flood defences, fallow land to serve as a flood plain etc.

59. As also raised in the responses to the Planning White Paper, significant
resources will be required (in both public and private sectors) to implement these
measures through local design policy. Additional resources will be needed given
capacity issues and the pressure already on the design service in North
Northamptonshire.

Section 6. Our commitment to engaging communities

What do you think?

1. How can government engage the public better?
[Communication materials/ Social listening/ Focus groups/ 1-1 interviews and experiments/
Ethnography/ Citizen assemblies and citizen juries/ Other types of engagement]

Response:

2. Before this consultation, | was familiar with the area known as the Oxford-
Cambridge Arc.

[Yes/ No]

Response:

3. Do you have anything else to add on engaging communities?

Response:

19

Page 95



60. There is no one size fits all for properly engaging with all parts of the community
on all aspects of planning. An increased use of social media and digital tools may
help to engage with younger people but could be a disincentive to others. For the
plan making process these digital methods need to be supplemented by more
proactive methods such as workshops, exhibitions and other consultation events

61. The commitments in the document regarding consultation and engagement are
supported, as are the measures to ensure sustainability is at the heart of the ASF. It
is critical that these matters underpin the preparation of the ASF. The timetable for
the ASF is challenging and will require significant input from North Northamptonshire
Council and other stakeholders (including an anticipated three consultations in 18
months). It is important that this time pressure does not undermine engagement and
robust testing of the ASF and the evidence base that underpins it. It is noted that the
current timetable does not include for an independent examination of the proposals
or an end date for the ASF to be finalised as national policy.

Section 7. Our commitment to data, evidence and digital tools

What do you think?

1. To what extent do you agree with our proposed approach on data and evidence?
[Strongly disagree/ Disagree/ Neutral/ Agree/ Strongly agree]

Response:

2. Do you have anything else to add on data, evidence and digital tools?

Response:

62. The commitment to developing a robust, accessible evidence base is strongly
supported and should assist implementation of the ASF and support local plan
development. Officers from North Northamptonshire Council have participated in
useful discussions with MHCLG to discuss how this can best be achieved. Evidence
produced for the North Northamptonshire Strategic Plan will inform the Council’s
input into the ASF. The Joint Core Strategy and other strategies endorsed by the
Joint Planning Committee/ Joint Delivery Committee, including the North
Northamptonshire Investment Framework and Economic Prospectus, are all a strong
starting point. As discussed earlier in this response, it is critical that the ASF
evidence base addresses and seeks to resolve key issues that could constrain
sustainable growth within the Arc such as the impact of Special Protection Areas
(SPAs), infrastructure constraints, etc. This will help support Local Plan development
and implementation.

63. The use of digital tools is welcomed and will help to ensure that key data and
information can be shared to a wider audience and encourage active participation.

20

Page 96


http://www.nnjpdu.org.uk/publications/north-northamptonshire-investment-framework/
http://www.nnjpdu.org.uk/site/assets/files/1459/16461_nn_economic_prospectus_final_26_06_20.pdf

Section 8. How we will monitor and deliver the Framework

Delivery and funding

What do you think?

1. To what extent do you agree with our proposed approach on delivery and
funding?
[Strongly disagree/ Disagree/ Neutral/ Agree/ Strongly agree]

Response:
2. Do you have anything else to add on delivery and funding?

Response:

64. The approach to assessing viability and identifying key infrastructure within the

development of the ASF at para 8.5 is supported as the approach and policies in the
ASF need to be deliverable. It will be essential that it is delivered on the ground and
sufficiently funded. In parts of North Northamptonshire, particularly areas with lower

land values, viability impacts on the delivery of infrastructure, design quality and
affordable housing. As set out earlier in this response, the North Northamptonshire
Investment Framework (June 2019) identified that the highest priority infrastructure
projects had a funding shortfall of just under £316m, based on a ‘point-in-time’
snapshot as at June 2019. This shortfall represents the tip of the iceberg for North
Northamptonshire.

65. Alongside the provision of sufficient infrastructure funding, local authorities will
require sufficient resources to implement the ASF locally.

Monitoring and evaluation

What do you think?

1. To what extent do you agree with our proposed approach on monitoring and
evaluation?
[Strongly disagree/ Disagree/ Neutral/ Agree/ Strongly agree]

Response:

2. Do you have anything else to add on monitoring and evaluation?

Response:

66. It is unclear who will undertake the monitoring and provide the data. If local
authorities are to have a role they will need to be appropriately resourced. Clear

Page 97

21



definitions of indicators and methodologies will be needed to ensure consistency.
There will also need to be sufficient lead in time to gather any data or information to
inform the monitoring process.

67. It is suggested that potential indicators are considered when drafting policies to
provide a fit between the two, and to ensure the former can genuinely provide
meaningful outputs from which changes can be identified.

68. Further clarity on whether there will be an Arc databank for local authorities to
use/input into would be useful.

22

Page 98



Agenda Iltem 5

slayplug Uoser Jo[[Iounoy :[19UNoY allysuojdweyuoN YHON Jo Japea

S99]AI2S ojeIOOWa( Aq paysijqnd

120 ¥39INTD3A L€ OL 1202 ¥39INT1d3S |
[1I9Uno) aJlysuojdweyroN YLON

JIOUNOY) Somemm——

aysuoydwioypIoN “ﬂ'
YHON Y by

Page 99



"0002 19V JUSWUIBACY) |BI0T 39U} JO D UOHO3S YIM 80UBPICIVE Ul 9)B)S JO Alejaloag ay) Ag penss| Buiaq
awi ayj Joj souepInb Aue o} piebas aney osje |[Im [louno?) asysuojdweypoN YpoN sasodind asoy) Jo} Jueoyiubis, Jo Buiueaw ayy Bulurlelap u|

"000°0053 sAoqe o} Bujjunowe asoy) a.e sBulaes 1o ainjipuadxe Juesyiubls 1ey) pepioep sey [1unoc) ay |

«Aoyine ay jo
BSJE SU) Ul SpJem |eJojodle aIoW Jo om) Buisiidwiod eele ue ul Buppom 1o Buiall SaiuNWLWIoD Uo s}0ays S) Jo swus) u) juesipubls ag o) (q)
lo juedyiubls ‘are yolym sbuiaes jo Bunjew ayy Jo ‘s yoiym jo ainjipusdxs Buinou) Ajioyine ay} ut Ynsal o} (e)
-:A19Y1] 1 yaiym auo si uolsioa( Aa)| e Jey) pepioap sey Auoyine ay |

"uofieuloul Jdwexa Jo [e[juepyLod Jo 8iNsO[osIp Jland By} PIoAe 0) JOpIO Uy AIBSS808U S| SIU) Jey) SIOPISUCO 18010
Burioyuoly s,jlouno? auyy usym pue se sBunsaw yons woly papnxe aq Auo |im angnd pue ssaid ay| -oignd pue sseud sy} 03 usdo sBunesw
Je apew 8q Ajlewsou |m suoisjosp Asy, ‘suoisioep Jueoyubls Jo juepoduwl jsow ay ainjdes o} pspusiul s Uoisioap Aey, e Jo jdesuod ay|

WISI|ED07] pue SauNWWOo) |elny SOMOH plaeq Jo||IoUR0D
Ajunwwosd pue Buisnoy 1228y Apuy JojIoamo
S)ossy pue [eAel ] ‘sAemybiy UBWMET Weyels) Jo[|olinoy
uone.iausbey pue ymoig Anquaxoelg piae(q JojjIoggRpD
uoljew.IojSuUBl] pue edueul Aepung pAop7 Jo|pdR0D
JUSWUOIIAUT USSIC) pUB 3jewli|) puepuad 1alueH Jojipdnon
SIIMS pue uoiednp3 ‘saljiwed ‘uaip(iyd SpJempd §oag Jojlounod
Bulaqjiapn pue yjesH ‘synpy uosLUIeH ua[aH Jo||Iounc)

WSUNO| pue ainyng ‘ainsia] ‘wodg :
[lounog aliysuoidweyuoN YyuUoN jo JepesT Aindagg [IPMOH U8JaH Jof|12unoy)
[IoUNOYD aaysuojdweyoN YHON Jo Japea SISUJILUS UOSE JOJjIouUN0)
1948 OA[IND9XT 3y} JO SIaqUISIA aY |

‘siseq Ajyjuow Buijjol
e Uo pajepdn s! uejd 8yl ‘pouad Yuow Jnoj e JoA0 8XE)} 0} A[Si| 918 PasLOYINE OS JedIYo IO Apoq Jsyjoue JO BAIND9XT S} YdIYm SUOISIDap
Jdwaxs, pue ,suoisiap £ay, 8y} |[e jo 2on0u doueApe SaAlb ) -ojeaud wl sBupasw jo sued Jo sBupesw pjoy o} pue suoisap A9y, aye) 0}
uofusiul s JIouNod ay) Jo aoljou sAep gz palinbas ay) apiroad o} si esodind sy "z10z suonenbay (puejbu3) (uonewloyu| 0) ssa29y pue sbunasy)
(sluswebueuy eAjnoax3) senuouyny [e207 syl o) juensind paysignd si ) ‘ueld psemio4 s |lounod adiysuoldweypoN YUoN 8y: SI SIylL

NOILONCOXLNI



age 101

NN"ACE SJUBHOUYIOU@Sa0IAISSOEIsowsp jlews oddald

"Sa0IA9S dfessows(] ‘edod piaeQq
Ulim pasiel aq pinoys suoisioap Asy Buie) Jo} sjuswobuelle ay) Jnoge 1o Ue|d pIemio SIU) JO SJUBJUOD 8y Jnoge sauanb 1o suojsanb [esausb |y

‘Paysiignd pue papiodai aq 0} } 10adxa 0} 21gnd U} JO JBqISW B 10} 8|qeucseal §i Jl JeY) OS SAISUSS Jojpue juepodw Apusioyns
Jo Jueoijiubis aq 0} palspIsuod ale ey} SUOISIoap 8soy) aq (|Im esay ‘ajeldosdde JapIsuod Aay} se $J901)J0 10 SaPIWOD-NS 10 SBBJWWOY)
sif Jo Aue Jo JIounoD auy) Aq usye] aq 0} ale YdIym ‘SUCISISSp JOYI0 Yons 0} S80UsIsol ueld piemiod ayj ul epnjoul os|e Aew Jsoyo BuLojuop ay |

"JSOIO pauouUsWISpUN
SU} JOBIUOD pInoys Ue|d dy) Ul 0} paiiajal sanss! Aue Jo joadsal ul s|ielep Jayun} ulejqo Jo/pue suonejussaidal yons syew o) Buiysim 3U0SIad
"ajeAud ul uey Jayjes ‘olgnd Ul pasapisuod aq pinoys wey jdwexs ue Aym uo 1DUNOY aU} 0} suoyejuasaidel ayew o} 2liqnd sy} Jo siaquBW
o} sapinoid z10z suopeinbey (puejbug) (uonewdopu| o} ssenay pue sbunesy) (sjuswabuelny 3AINoaxX3) sanuoyny (2907 8y} jo g ydeibeiey

"ajeAud Ul play ag Aew yaiym sway Aue Jo sonou asueape sspiaoid ueld siy 1 Uonnnsuc)H
S[oUnoy syl ul Uoposs S9Ny 9iNpsdold UONBLUWOU} O} SS800Y, 8y} Ul punoj 9q UeO seuobsjes uondwexs ay) JO S|IE]8Q  SUBUNOOP
Jusuiped Aue o} SSe00E WOJ UOISN|OXD SBPNOUl SIYL 'PasO[IsIP aq pjnom uohiewloul lepuapyuod jey; sbuipasoold ayy Jo ainjeu ay) Jo
P8joesue]} 8q 0] SS3UISNG B} JO diNjeU 8y JO MBIA BU) Ul ‘Jeuy A1 SI )l JeAsusym sBunesw woly pepnjoxs aJe aljqnd sy Jo siequispy “Bunesw
Sy} WoJy papnjoxs aq Aew 2ijqnd ay} 819ym SWB) 0} UoNeISpPISUCD BAIB 0} jIouncs) axysucidweyPoN YUON 2y} loj Alessaosu aq Aew Jl sswWy 1y



Awouoo3 pue eoe|d

(eale
sjueyuIopN Jse3) sjuswinaoc
Buluueq Aeyuswajddng

= 10399410 BARNISXT 120z dog o¢ ON SeA aAlnoexg saxaUuy |2UspISay
bulaqiepm pue Bupanay ‘sis yoanyd
saljiunuILOy ‘s)npy jdwaxe ped Isipoylapy sbueisy Jawlod -
- 10}93.1(] BARNISXT] 120z desg ot ON SIA aAnoox3 | wewdojaasg Buisno Jlounos
"~ Buiaqiepn pue
SaUNWWOo ‘synpy juswdojeasg
- 10}08.11(] 8AlNoaxXg LZ0zZ des o¢ ON SaA annoaxg Buisnoly peoy wayusysyn
Bulaqiepn pue
sanIUNWWOo?) ‘S)NpyY wswdojpaag
- 10)9911(] BARNDIXT Lzog des og oN SO 2ANND8X] Buisnoy peoy yaouue)
Awouoo3 pue ageld Aoueua] uue -
- 002l SANND9Xg 1Z20Z dag o ON SOA OAINDBXg | SS04D uojuels 1e Jueludojensg
QY
Awouoog pue soseld Jdwiexe ued nmow_m_mm_
- 10)o341q aAnoexg L2e0g das o ON S9A aanoaxy pue peoy JybBumy je Cond
“Buiaqllepm pue =
sauUNWIWoY 'synpy o
- 102941 eAnNoaXg LZ0zZ dag o¢ ON SaA oAnnoaxg Aallod Buipung Ajunuition
aoueul Ze/lene
- J0)391(] @Alnoaxg Lgog des pe ON SO aAllnoaxy a1epdn swweibold jeyden
aoueuUl ccileoe
- 10)08UI] 2ANNoeX] Loz des oe ON S8\ aANNoexT a1epdn jsesaie4 19bpng
Aue
31 ‘'uondwaxa
Joj suoseay
uoljeuuojul
(Aue 1} Joyny :uols|aeg usjepspun waxa LUoIs198p
sjuswnaop Hoddng | Joday pajedionuy Jo 8jeq uone)nsuo) ueuos i 1M Aoy ey gl Jaye uoisioa( uolsioaq ayj jo 1ae[gng

Jaquisydeg




soueul

ce/iene

- Jo}dailg aAlnoaxg LZ0Z AON G2 ON saA annoeaxg a)epdp )seosuo4 19bpng
Aue
§1 ‘uonpduwiaxs
10} SUOSEIY
uolneuuojug
{Aue 1) loyyny HITJTIRET, | uayeMapun jdwaxa Juojsjep
sjuswnaop yoddng | Moday pajedidijuy Jo ayeqg uonejNsucy) ureuoa 3 JIp Aoy eys| | Joyew uoisideq iuois193Qg ays jo Jooling
J9CQWISAON
S|O0YOS JoIUN[ JoBNS palllY
S92IAI9S S,Ua.pIyD pue JuB| peoy UosAuua |
= l0)2aug eAlnoexy L20¢ 190 8¢ ON SoA aANoax] 10 uojewebjewe paspdold
p—|
asioN ybnosogbigilopn
Awouoa3 pue aseld AqQ paisallep AUaing segRlas _
- 10ja8lig aAlnN2axg L2002 120 82 ON sa\ OAlINDaxg au} Jo uoisiaoud @NIN4
AWwouoag pue soeld JoenuoD Buljohosy
- 10]93l1(] 8ARNDaXT] 1202 120 8¢ ON SaA aAlNDexy sjsepn Aig Jo mainey
aoueUl (A XA
- JOJoRlI] sMINoaXs 1202 120 82 ON SaA aAllhaaxg alepdn swwelboid fenden
aoueulq acllene
- lojoanQg aAnnoexg LZ0Z 190 82 oN SO\ aAlINJaxXs s)epdp }seoalo 19bpng
Aue
} ‘uolydwaxa
1o} suoseay
Zuojjeunojun
{Aue J1) loyny [uo)s|a9(g usyeuapun jdwoxo Juojspsep
sjuawinzop yoddng | poday pejediopuy Jo ejeq uone}nsuos) uje3uo 3 JIIM Aejey s | J1aepy uoisipeg

iuoisjoeQ ayj jo joelgng

180390




Page 104

20uell4 [AAYNAIA
- 10)03JI(] aAnnaax] 1202 28Q 91 oN SaA aAfnoaxy ajepdn swwe.boid jenden
adueul T4 A4
- lo)oalIqg sAnpnoexy LZ0zZ 292d 9l ON saA aAlNoaxg ajepdn jseoalod }abpng

Aue

3 ‘uondwaxs

loj suoseay

Zuoljeunoyul

(Aue y) Joyjny uojsiaaqg Lexenapun jdwiaxa Zuolsisap
sjuswnaop Hoddng | poday pajedidnuy jo ayeq uopeNsuog uleuoa j A Aoy ejis| | Joyep uoispeq uoisjaaq sy jo Joaiqng
JaquiaoeQg

soueuly ceiLeog
- 1oj2auI] sAnoexg L20Z AON 52 ON SaA aAIND9XY elepdn swweibo.d jepden




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 19 August 2021
	4 Creating a Vision for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc
	Appendix A - Consultation Document
	Structure Bookmarks
	Scope of this consultation 
	Basic information 
	1. Introduction: Creating a Vision for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc 
	The government’s ambition for the Oxford-Cambridge Arc 
	The government is developing a Spatial Framework to help deliver on that ambition 
	What is the Spatial Framework, and what could it do? 
	Why we are consulting you now 
	What you have told us so far 
	Next steps 
	What do you think? 
	2. The Environment 
	Our ambition for the Arc’s environment  
	The Arc’s environment today 
	How the Spatial Framework could help us to realise our ambition 
	What you have told us so far 
	What do you think? 
	3. The Economy 
	Our ambition for the Arc’s economy  
	The Arc’s economy today 
	How the Spatial Framework could help us to deliver our ambition 
	What you have told us so far 
	What do you think? 
	4. Connectivity and Infrastructure 
	Our ambition for connectivity and infrastructure in the Arc 
	Connectivity and infrastructure in the Arc today 
	How the Spatial Framework could help to deliver our ambition 
	What you have told us so far 
	What do you think? 
	5. Place-making 
	Our ambition for place-making in the Arc 
	Place-making in the Arc today 
	How the Spatial Framework could help us to deliver our ambition 
	What have you told us so far 
	What do you think? 
	6. Our commitment to engaging communities 
	Why do we want to engage? 
	Our commitment to you 
	What have we done so far? 
	How will our engagement be structured? 
	Engagement roadmap 
	Have your say 
	What do you think? 
	7. Our commitment to data, evidence and digital tools 
	Introduction 
	Our commitment 
	Evidence base 
	What do you think? 
	8. How we will monitor and deliver the Framework 
	Delivery and funding 
	Monitoring and evaluation 


	Appendix B - Draft Response

	5 Executive Forward Plan

